
Ron Sellers
District 1

Vice-Chair

Ron Hirst
District 2
Member

Daniel P. Friesen
District 3

Chair

Courthouse
206 W. 1st Avenue

Hutchinson, KS 67501

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer
  
3. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair
 3.A Proclamation for National Crime Victims' Rights Week - Tom Stanton, District

Attorney
 3.B Gas Plant Explosion Update - Adam Weishaar, Emergency Management Director
  
4. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5
minutes per item.

  
5. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda
  
6. Consent Agenda
 6.A Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units).
 6.B Proclamation of a State of Local Disaster Emergency due to April 14, 2022 fire with

smoke and explosions.
 6.C BOCC final minutes from March 22nd, March 22nd study session, March 22nd

special agenda, March 29th, and April 12th.
 6.D Approval to send Request for Qualifications pertaining to Reno County Shooting

Range (landfill)
 6.E Consider for Approval,  Compensation to GLMV Architects for the Additional

Design Work on the Courthouse Dome in the amount of $16,500.
 6.F Planning Case #2022-02 - A resolution approving a request by Mark Yackley

(Applicant: Ben Maser) to rezone approximately .2 acres of land from R-1 - Rural
Residential District to AG - Agricultural District at 3602 N. Willison Road.

  
7. Budget Presentations
 7.A Arts & Humanities Council 2023 Budget Request
 7.B Hutchinson Recreation Commission 2023 Budget Request for Special Park &

Recreation Funds
 7.C Emergency Medical Services 2023 Budget Request
 7.D Horizons Mental Health 2023 Budget Request
 7.E Reno County Museum 2023 Budget Request

REGULAR SESSION

 

A G E N D A
Annex Conference Room

125 W. 1st Avenue
Hutchinson, KS 67501

Tuesday, April 26, 2022, 9:00 AM



 7.F StartUp Hutch 2023 Budget Request
 7.G T.E.C.H. 2023 Budget Request
  
8. Business Items
 8.A USI Overview of Plan Performance and Strategies to Improve Performance
 8.B Compensation Policy
 8.C Reno County Courthouse Space Renovation Architect Proposal
 8.D Communications Yearly Update
  
9. County Administrator Report
 9.A 2023-2027 CIP Presentation
 9.B Monthly Department Reports
  
10. County Commission Report/Comments
  
11. Adjournment



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #3.A

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: District Attorney - Thomas R. Stanton

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Proclamation for National Crime Victims' Rights Week - Tom Stanton, District Attorney

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
National Crime Victims' Rights Week - April 24 - 30, 2022

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Read and Sign the Proclamation



PROCLAMATION 
 

Whereas, the term “victim” is more than just a label and has legal standing and protections 
that go along with it; and 

Whereas, crime victim’s rights acts passed here in Kansas and at the federal level guarantee 
victims the right to meaningfully participate in the criminal justice process; and 

Whereas, victim service providers, advocates, law enforcement officers, attorneys, and other 
allied professionals can help survivors find their justice by enforcing these rights; and 

Whereas, victim service providers and allied professionals can reach more victims through 
innovative, trauma-informed programs, such as telehealth services and multidisciplinary teams; and 

Whereas, victim service providers and allied professionals can increase access to victim 
services and compensation in areas that have been historically underserved, marginalized, and 
adversely affected by inequality by implementing culturally responsive services; and 

Whereas, equity and inclusion are fundamental prerequisites to survivor care, and survivor-
led services that provide victims with opportunities to share their experiences are essential blueprints 
for support; and 

 Whereas, National Crime Victims’ Rights Week, April 24-30, 2022, provides an 
opportunity to recommit to ensuring that accessible, appropriate, and trauma-informed services are 
offered to all victims of crime; and 
   
 Whereas, Reno Country District Attorney’s Office is hereby dedicated to helping crime 
survivors find their justice by enforcing victims’ rights, expanding access to services, and ensuring 
equity and inclusion for all. 
 
 Now therefore, as the Board of the County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas, do 
hereby proclaim the week of April 24-30, 2022, as:  

RENO COUNTY CRIME VICTIMS’ RIGHTS WEEK 
 

And the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County reaffirms this commitment to 
creating a victim service and criminal justice response that assists all victims of crime during Crime 
Victims’ Rights Week and throughout the year; and expressing our sincere gratitude and appreciation 
for those community members, victim service providers, and criminal justice professionals who are 
committed to improving our response to all victims of crime so that they may find relevant assistance, 
support, justice, and peace. 

 
In Witness Whereof, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of Reno County, 

Kansas, to be affixed, this _____ day of April, 2022. 

 
BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 

 
      _________________________________ 

Daniel P. Friesen, Chairperson 
 
      _________________________________ 

Ron Sellers, Member 
 
_________________________________ 
Ron Hirst, Member 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Donna Patton, Reno County Clerk  



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.B

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Adam Weishaar, Emergency Management Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Proclamation of a State of Local Disaster Emergency due to April 14, 2022 fire with smoke and
explosions.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Adopt Proclamation



 

 

 

PROCLAMATION of a State of Local Disaster Emergency for Reno County, Kansas: 

 

 WHEREAS on the 14th Day of April 2022 the Board of Commissioners of Reno 

County, Kansas finds that a fire with smoke and explosions that has the potential  conditions 

eminently threaten to cause severe damage, injury or loss of life or property in disaster 

proportion in Reno County, Kansas 

 

 WHEREAS such conditions have created obstructions which endanger health, safety 

and welfare of persons and property within the border of Reno County, Kansas 

 

 Now, therefore, be it resolved by the Board of Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas: 

 

 That the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas, under and by virtue 

of the authority vested in it by K.S.A. 1976 Supp. 48-932, does hereby PROCLAIM that a State 

of Local Disaster Emergency exists. 

 

 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that the area within the 

border of Reno County, Kansas covered by this proclamation/resolution is within Reno County, 

Kansas. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said Board has all rights and /or powers to 

perform such functions as are vested in said Board by and through the provisions of all Kansas 

Emergency Preparedness Act of 1975. 

 

 IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND PROCLAIMED that this resolution shall remain 

in effect for a period of seven (7) days unless terminated earlier or renewed by consent of the 

governing body. 

 

 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS THIS 14th 

 day of April 2022 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      Daniel Friesen 

      Chairperson 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Ron Sellers  

      Member 

 

      _________________________________________ 

      Ron Hirst 

      Member 

Attest: 

 

________________________ 

Donna Patton, County Clerk 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.C

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Cindy Martin

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
BOCC final minutes from March 22nd, March 22nd study session, March 22nd special agenda, March
29th, and April 12th.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Final copy of minutes from previous agenda sessions

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve or deny minutes as presented
 

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Board to approve minutes as presented.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A



29 
 

March 22, 2022 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda 

session at the Annex Conference Room with Chairman Daniel 

Friesen, Commissioner Ron Sellers, and Commissioner Ron Hirst, 

County Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick 

Hoffman, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present.   

  

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by 

a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Becky Stark, Buhler United 

Methodist Church. 

 

 Director of Public Health Karla Nichols read the 

Proclamation for National Public Health Week of April 4 thru 10, 

2022. Commissioner Friesen presented the proclamation to Ms. 

Nichols stating he recognized all the hard work and appreciated 

what her department does for the community.  Mr. Sellers 

commented when he came on the commission, he did not know how 

much the Health Department did for Reno County citizens. He 

wanted to pass along his thanks to staff.  Mr. Hirst appreciated 

the working relationship between the Health Department and the 

Commissioners, and thanked Ms. Nichols and her staff. 

 

 There were no public comments and no additions to the 

agenda.  

  

 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Sellers, to approve the 

Consent Agenda consisting of items 6A through 6J, including the 

Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on March 18th, 2022, 

totaling $436,985.26, claims payable on March 25th, 2022, totaling 

$389,814.01; approval for Resolution #2022-09; A RESOLUTION 

APPOINTING A COUNTY APPRAISER to appoint Michael Plank for a term 

commencing July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2025; approve a renewed 

application for a Cereal Malt Beverage License for Hutchinson 

Recreation Commission DBA Fun Valley Sports Complex for ON PREMISES 

Sells in the amount of $125.00. Mr. Sellers commented that he was 

a Hutchinson Recreation Board member however there was not a 

conflict; to approve BOCC minutes from February 22nd, February 22nd 

Work Study Session, March 1st, and March 8th, 2022, approval of a 

Caterpillar Certified Powertrain Rebuild from Foley Equipment on 

Solid Waste Equipment #321 a 623G Scraper in the amount of 

$432,702.12; approve an agreement between Reno County and JEO 

Consulting Group, Inc. for Professional Services for 4th Avenue 

bridge repairs over Cow Creek Drainage; to approve Public Works 

purchase of a 2022 ¾ ton Dodge Ram 2500 Tradesman Crew Cab 4X4 

from Allen Samuels, Hutchinson, Kansas, for a cost of $45,711.00; 



30 
 
to approve Planning Case #2023-15 a request by Jesse Keim for a 

conditional use permit to establish a manufacturing facility to 

construct kitchen cabinets and other wood products. The property 

is located at 11203 S. Obee Road which is at the southwest corner 

of E. Greenfield Road and S. Obee Road; approve Planning Case 

#2022-01 a request by Jason & Christy West to rezone approximately 

20.69 acres of land from R-1 Rural Residential District to AG 

Agricultural District.  The property is located at 303 N. Mayfield 

Road which is at the southwest corner of N. Mayfield Road and E. 

4th Avenue; approve permission to purchase two (2) used vehicles 

to be used as unmarked cars for the Sheriff’s Office detective 

Division at a not to exceed cost of $39,000 for both vehicles as 

presented by staff.  The consent agenda motion was approved by a 

roll call vote of 3-0.   

 

 Conservation District Manager Chloe Gehring gave a brief 

history of the Conservation District serving Reno County for 75 

years. She made a presentation of the 2023 Budget to the Board.  

She stated the Reno County Conservation District was requesting 

$2,500 more, making it $50,000 for FY2023 which was an increase 

from previous years.  She reviewed seven different services and 

money that was cost shared from the State of Kansas.  The 

Conservation District owns equipment that can be rented in place 

of chemicals, grass seed sales, and fencing supplies. 

 

 Mr. Sellers had a couple of questions for Ms. Gehring. He 

asked where did the Conservation District get their Tech funds 

from? Ms. Gehring replied they were from grant dollars.  Mr. 

Sellers asked about other groups that do similar programs as the 

Conservation does, how do you not overlap something. Ms. Gehring 

stated that we are a co-located NRCS service center.  The Cheney 

Water Shed is a project of the district however it has a different 

footprint and serve five counties, and the Conservation District 

serves the whole of Reno County.  She is the only employee of the 

Conservation District. 

 

 Mr. Hirst encouraged a tour at the Cheney Lake Water Shed.  

He encouraged the Commission to attend a Cheney event where they 

talked about crops and cost sharing offensive.  NRCS asked to 

participate in fire mitigation.  He thanked them for help with 

Senator Moran where they provided information. 

 

 Mr. Friesen thanked her for her presentation. AG is one of 

the pillars of the economy in Reno County. He encouraged her to do 

more education of county residents with fire and sewer efforts. 

 

  



31 
 
 Maintenance/Purchasing Director Harlen Depew reviewed the 

change order in the amount of $928,440.80 from Pishny Restoration 

for additional repairs to the courthouse dome.  He said the 

concrete cap rests on top of steel tresses and then the limestone 

is on top of that.  A large discussion and explanation with Mr. 

Depew and the Board over inspections and repairs recommended by 

the different engineers.  The Board consensus was if the insurance 

company pays the claim, to give authorization for Mr. Partington 

to proceed with the work.  If the county has to pay, it will need 

Commissions approval.  Mr. Sellers moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, 

to approve the change order not to exceed the amount of $928,440.80 

from Pishny Restoration for additional repairs to the courthouse 

dome as presented.  The motion was approved by a roll call vote of 

2 to 1, with Mr. Friesen opposing.  The Board requested Mr. Depew 

keep the company moving in a timely matter. 

 

 Mr. Depew was also present for his annual update giving a 

review of the past year.  He said the current staff did the best 

they could with the workload. Mr. Friesen suggested looking into 

contracting labor to help. 

 

 Mr. Hirst questioned County Attorney Hoffman and Mr. Depew if 

a change order came thru could you add a penalty clause.  Mr. 

Hoffman explained the legal aspect of a contract and will review 

it.  Mr. Friesen questioned the cost of renting scaffolding and 

asked Mr. Depew to check into the cost. 

 

 County Administrator Randy Partington gave his report to the 

Board.  He had half of the department monthly reports. The Board 

briefly discussed the Solid Waste New Policy with high winds. Mr. 

Friesen mentioned having media coverage come out to the Landfill 

to witness the trash issue.  Mr. Partington reminded the Board of 

the March 29th ARPA meeting at 9:00 a.m. and said it would be 

recorded.  He introduced the new Appraiser Michael Plank who gave 

a brief history of himself.  The Board and staff welcomed him to 

Reno County.   

  

 Mr. Hirst commented on an article in The Hutch Post about an 

appreciation dinner at the VFW this Saturday, March 29th between 

4:00 pm to 8:00 pm in honor of Vietnam Veterans who will eat free 

at the all-American dinner.  Senator Marshall had a lot of useful 

information given.  FSA requirement applications can call 620-669-

8161 on fencing questions.  Good representation from Harvey County, 

Reno County, Kansas Forest Service and County Fire Districts. Mr. 

Hirst attended a Stepping up place meeting. 

 

 Mr. Sellers as a County Commissioner and individual was 

disappointed with the reaction of the local FSA agent when a 



32 
 
request was made to extend burn dates.  The FSA agent replied to 

the request to extend burn dates stating those dates were made in 

Washington DC and he couldn’t change them.  Senator Marshall   

needed to help ranchers/farmers in their time of need, he said it 

was poor government. The Board briefly discussed a summer burn 

plan. 

  

 Mr. Friesen agreed with the response for help on extending 

burn dates.  Senator Moran sent apologies as he was in Poland 

assisting there.  Senator Marshall communicated to them by Mr. 

Partington again with request for dates.  He received emails about 

the Solid Waste closures.   Dusty Tocha sent a very long email on 

fire/burning.  Septic systems came up in his email box, deferred 

to Mr. Partington and should now come to the Commission level.  An 

email was received about a property in the Medora area for junk 

cars and how to handle the situation.  

  

At 10:40 a.m. the meeting recessed for a 20-minute break and 

reconvened at 11:00 a.m. for the special study session. 

 Approved: 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 



  

 

March 22, 2022 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held a special study 

session at the Annex Conference Room with Chairman Daniel 

Friesen, Commissioner Ron Sellers, Commissioner Ron Hirst, 

County Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick 

Hoffman, and Minutes Clerk Cindy Martin, present. Also in 

attendance from Reno County were the following: Sheriff Darrian 

Campbell, Patrol Captain Levi Blumanhourst, Emergency Management 

Director Adam Weishaar, Reno County Fire Administrator Travis 

Vogt, Assistant Fire Chief District #3 Gerald Wiens, 

Reno/Kingman Joint #1 Pretty Prairie Fire Chief Rick Graber, 

Public Works Director Don Brittain, and Reno County Planner Mark 

Vonachen.  Others in attendance were as follows: City of 

Hutchinson Fire Chief Steven Beer, City of Hutchinson Deputy 

Fire Chief Doug Hanen, Tabitha Neahring and Megan Niemeyer with 

VOAD/TSA, Reno County citizens Dr. Christine Sanders, MD and 

Chris Corey, Mayor of Highlands Carol Moore, Kansas Forest 

Service Rodney Redinger and Dennis Carlson, USDA-NRCS Dusty 

Tacha, and Marcus Preuninger CEA-A/NR KSRE.   

 

Mr. Friesen stated today’s session was to discuss 

recommendations for fire mitigation and management in the 

county.   

 

Mr. Weishaar met with the Commission to give a summary 

report.  He said in May of last year Emergency Management was 

instructed to coordinate with various organizations to come up 

with recommendations to find better ways to coordinate/mitigate 

the fire risk in the county focusing on the higher risk areas.  

A meeting took place in August 2021 with Kansas Forest Service 

Rangeland Management Specialist, Agriculture Extension Agent, 

Reno County Planner, and the Hutchinson Fire Department to 

discuss ideas to mitigate wildfire activity in the county. In 

2009 the Kansas Forest Service Fire Prevention Specialist 

completed a Community Wildfire Hazard Assessment report finding 

26 communities surveyed, noting that ten of those were low 

hazard rating, seven were moderate, and nine were a high rating.  

There are several areas that are now at risk that weren’t 

previously causing a potential high fire danger.  

 

County Planner Mark Vonachen explained the history of 

zoning.  Mr. Friesen questioned if there was fire zoning on 

hazardous dead-end roads.  Mr. Vonachen replied not prior to 

zoning however, currently we do have regulations with 



  

 

subdivision plats developed to Township Road standards from this 

time forward.  Mr. Friesen requested Mr. Vonachen research 

deeper in counties out of state that may have zoning fire 

mitigation.  Mr. Friesen then requested Mr. Vonachen make a note 

for the Planning Board to study    

 

Mr. Hirst asked about ETJ for Hutchinson. Mr. Vonachen 

replied that Hutchinson never did acquire the ETJ however, 

Buhler and Haven have a one-mile radius, and South Hutchinson, 

and Nickerson have a three-mile radius which is the limit they 

can do.  Mr. Friesen requested Mr. Partington research the ETJ 

that the past commission did not relinquish around Hutchinson. 

 

If a violation occurs with zoning the homeowner will get a 

letter and the county could take them to court.  An alternative 

would be to have a codes court since any enforcement of zoning 

or codes could be a very costly approach.  There was more 

discussion on zoning and options available, one being education 

provided to homeowners.  The Hutchinson Fire Department 

conducted four sessions with limited success with educating 

homeowners, and each property owner had the opportunity to have 

a risk assessment done on their property. 

 

Conservation District Chloe Wilson spoke about possible 

coordination of an event with education and subject matter experts.  

She could offer resources but no technical expertise because it 

was not what they do.  

 

Mr. Hirst asked how insurance companies fit in with 

education. 

 

Hutchinson Fire Chief Steve Beer stated at 10:30 a.m. on 

April 7th there is a scheduled roundhouse meeting with insurance 

carriers in the area on this subject matter.  

 

Rodney Redinger with the Kansas Forest Service stated it 

was a big challenge to get the participation of homeowners not 

only here but across the state with the “Fire Wise” training. 

 

Dr. Christine Sanders addressed the Commission as a 

homeowner in The Highlands area and said she hosted a “Fire 

Wise” meeting in her home for their neighborhood to educate 

them.  She stated the Fire Wise was a great program and needed 

to be pushed annually around this time of year. She was 

concerned about getting rid of the fuel and the cost of removing 

cedar trees off people’s properties was very expensive.   

  



  

 

Enforcement in the current resolution #2017-12, needs more 

in-depth review in some sections, the Board discussed these 

issues.  Mr. Weishaar stated after meetings it was decided that 

dispatch will start letting a citizen know if they are allowed 

to burn or not on high-risk days. If the resolution was 

violated, the Sheriff’s Office will make a case and send it to 

the District Attorney’s Office for prosecution. One action item 

was a modification to the current resolution, to modify section 

3A which gives dispatch authority to tell citizens no to 

burning.  The second proposed modification was to grant the Fire 

Chief’s in their jurisdiction the authority to be able to tell 

people no burning that day after they have had a fire out of 

control. 

 

In the other category it was mentioned about changes to the 

burn resolution and how the same people either follow or are the 

cause of problems.  All large fires in Reno County have not been 

caused by controlled burning.  Some small property owners do not 

have the education or equipment for safely conducting a 

controlled burn.  The mitigation of volatile fuel needs to be 

the county’s priority.  In the past two years, the Hutchinson 

Fire Department along with Fire District #2 have burned over 20 

miles of ditches and rights-of-way that would be hinge points 

and potentially stop large fires and they plan to continue to 

burn these each year.  Our volunteer fire districts do not have 

the time or manpower to make this an effective strategy through 

the whole county.   

 

Sheriff Darrian Campbell stated that since the burn ban has 

been in effect, two weeks or so ago, we have had three incidents 

from the citizens not calling in to dispatch or didn’t know 

about the ban.  They did not have permission to burn, and those 

cases would be forwarded to the District Attorney’s Office. 

 

Mr. Sellers had concerns about citizens calling into 

dispatch for burning and asked if there should be a different 

point of contact.  Sheriff Campbell stated that we need a 24/7 

service or more training for dispatch regarding burning before 

saying yes or no.  Mr. Hirst gave a background of the 2017 

resolution origination. 

 

Kansas Forest Service Dennis Carlson spoke about Federal 

Grants that can be used for fire mitigation in larger areas. 

 

Chief Beer suggested education for a no burn ban, and also 

no burning three to five days around a red flag day.  He said 

changes need to be made. 



  

 

 

USDA-NRCS Dusty Tocha mentioned FEMA money for fuel 

mitigation, farm bill programs, and cost sharing of AG related 

issues.  He said the biggest problem was an education gap and 

growing season burns. 

 

A recommendation is for the county to come up with a 

funding source or tax incentive to help individual property 

owners with fuel mitigation.  This would assist small property 

owners to contract to mitigate the fuel load on their property 

helping to save money in comparison to the hundreds of thousands 

of dollars spent on wildfire response.   

 

Mr. Friesen said, 1) no countywide policy- but specific 

zones will get a map with high, medium, and low priorities. 2) 

classify red, yellow, and green for landowners and suggested 

using the recommendation from Adam for approval of 

classification of property in the county. 3) the ordinance task 

force informal group will leave to Administration and the 

Emergency Management Department to revise a set of ordinances to 

consider adding teeth. 4)zoning staff collect and bring back 

items for consideration to the Planning Board, and then 

recommend a study session.  5) mitigation of fuel cost - Adam 

Weishaar will get a team together with the 1st set of 

recommendations on cost to work on fire mitigation. 6) media to 

put videos on commission education for fires and maybe keep the 

task force going with monthly meetings. 

 

At 12:17 p.m. the meeting recessed until the Joint 

County/City Work Session and reconvened at 1:00 p.m.  

 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 

 



  

 

March 22, 2022 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held a Joint 

County/City work session at 1:00 p.m. in the Annex Conference 

Room with Chairman Daniel Friesen, Commissioner Ron Sellers, 

Commissioner Ron Hirst, County Administrator Randy Partington, 

County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, and Minutes Clerk Cindy 

Martin, present.  In attendance from the City of Hutchinson were 

Mayor Jade Piros de Carvalho, City Manager Jeff Cantrell, City 

Council members Sara Bagwell, Greg Fast, Steve Garza, and Jon 

Richardson, and Fire Chief Steven Beer. 

 

Chairman Friesen called the meeting to order and said he 

appreciated how they can work together. Chief Beer spoke about 

almost losing two firefighters and the loss of a brush truck in 

the last big fire.  He then gave a brief summary of the request 

for three new type six brush trucks for $630,000 ($210,000 

each), new wildland personal protective gear for $100,000, bring 

existing brush trucks up to current standards and to standardize 

the fleet for $100,000, and replace damage loose tools, 

equipment, and hoses for $50,000.  He indicated the need for 

resources to better fight fires in Fire District #2 and the 

surrounding areas. The Reno County Board of Commissioners and 

the City of Hutchinson governing bodies discussed funding for 

the Fire Department/Reno County Fire District #2 Capital Request 

for an estimated cost of $880,000.  

 

After a brief explanation of the agreement between county 

and the city on splitting costs, they noted it is generally 79 

to 21 percent.  In Mr. Friesen’s opinion he would start the 

conversation with a 50-50 split for the cost saying he thought 

it was in good faith from the county on this one request.   

 

Commissioner Hirst would consider the 50-50 split but had 

some concerns.  After doing his own research on used equipment, 

he thought the expense was too high and he thought as a steward 

of the taxpayer’s money, the Board should review different 

options with regards to options on mitigation of fires.   

 

 Commissioner Sellers stated it was up to the city to 

determine how much money is spent on this project and the 

counties to determine how much percentage they spend on the 

total project.  He asked if the 2023 Capital Equipment fund 

would be decreased if District #2’s requested purchases were 

approved today by city/county.  He said the counties normal 



  

 

split was 20 to 25 percent however, in this case for mutual aid 

using the brush truck to fight rural fires, he would support a 

50-50 split.     

  

 Mayor Jade Piros de Carvalho mentioned this was not a one-

time cost but would have replacement costs in future years.  Mr. 

Sellers stated there would be no commitment past today for any 

equipment. 

 

 Councilwoman Bagwell agreed with Mr. Sellers that it should 

be a discussion the city needed to have with the cost amount 

they would fund for the equipment.  She heard they were 

discussing one brush truck for the 2023-2024 budget.  Chief Beer 

stated they were not adding more brush trucks to the fleet.  The 

current brush trucks were 25 years old and needing replaced 

along with the one truck that was damaged in the fire. 

 

 Commissioner Hirst questioned where did the $300,000 go 

that was paid for the fire trucks going to the wildfires in 

Colorado.  Chief Beer replied that after paying back all the 

expenses, there is $200,000 in that account and stated that 

money is allocated for a type 3 chassis replacement truck.  He 

is trying to eventually fund the wildfire fleet with wildfire 

funds and not funded by the taxpayers.  He explained the 

military trucks, type 6 trucks with 400 gallons, and noted that 

everyone in the county runs a type 6 truck.  

 

 Commissioner Friesen asked if the county would use the ARPA 

funds.  Mr. Partington said ARPA funds would be the easiest or 

CIP General fund reserve. 

 

 Commissioner Hirst was not ready to make a motion without 

specs. 

 

Mr. Friesen made a motion to approve the request from Chief 

Beer for the 50-percent up to $440,000 to match the city and 

asking the County Administrator to get back to the Commission as 

to where the allocated funds would come from.  Mr. Sellers 

seconded with additional discussions.   

 

Mr. Sellers felt very strongly that before he supported the 

approval for the allocation of funds on this purchase using ARPA 

funds or General CIP funds, he thought the cooperation was 

needed from the City of Hutchinson.  He brought up the January 

11th meeting of the County Commission where it was asked that the 

Commission Chairman, County Administrator, City of Hutchinson 

Mayor, and City Manager to resolve issues in a fair way for all 



  

 

concerned with the city/county contracts that were left without 

being renegotiated or renewed.  He said that meeting was held on 

January 14th however, the City of Hutchinson’s City Manager Jeff 

Cantrell left the hour-long scheduled meeting early without 

discussing the dates as to when these contracts would be 

negotiated fairly between both parties. He noted we share 67 

percent of the county’s population, so we share the same 

taxpayer’s dollars.  

      

Mr. Friesen declared the motion failed after Mr. Sellers 

explained that in his opinion, the city was not cooperating.  

 

Mayor Piros de Carvalho stated she was strongly committed 

to having a partnership with the county that was important to 

the community and she committed to resolve the multiple contract 

issues.   

 

Councilwoman Sara Bagwell was also committed to working 

with the county on the contracts and our relationship with the 

county. 

 

Councilman Steve Garza stated that the city would work out 

its issues at their meeting tonight.  He said they wanted to 

have that good relationship with the county. 

 

Councilman Greg Fast valued relationships in general and he 

gave his word they would improve in the city/county 

relationship.  

 

Councilman Jon Richardson stated they wanted to work with 

the county even if they had respectful sticking points on 

contracts. 

 

Mr. Sellers stated the City Council represented the City of 

Hutchinson and he represents his Commission District #1 noting 

that it represents over 60 of the county taxpayer funds. He 

stated that they are the same people, and we need to work 

closely together because it has not happened in the three years 

since he was elected to office. 

 

Mr. Friesen explained a couple of examples of when the 

trust had been degraded to a level that was unacceptable between 

the city and county.  He stated the county was looking for good 

faith and trust these types of issues should be handled by 

Administration not the Commission or City Council.  There are 

some failures, and we need to determine where they are and 

address them. 



  

 

 

City Manager Jeff Contrell addressed the Board and said the 

dialog was constructive, but the meeting had a lot of unknowns.  

He does not have the exclusive veto power outside the governing 

body on contracts between the city and county.  He stated there 

were frustrating issues that went back to the gun range.  The 

county has had a change in legal staff and the new counselor 

indicated the discussions should go on.  He said the County 

Administrator did not reach out to him for contracts.       

 

There was a large discussion on issues including the jail 

transport and other changes as well as the 9-1-1 dispatch issue. 

We need to work together and all in the room agreed.   

 

Mr. Friesen motioned to approve Fire Chief Beer’s request 

up to 50 percent with a maximum of $440,000 to match the city.  

Mr. Sellers seconded.  The motion was approved with a 2 to 1 

vote with Mr. Hirst opposed to the high cost.    

 

Mayor Piros de Carvelho stated more communication was 

needed both between the City Council and staff and between the 

City of Hutchinson and the County Commission.    

 

County Administrator Randy Partington went back to the 

January meeting. As staff for the county, he was not sure of 

what the City of Hutchinson wanted on the agreements. Mr. 

O’Sullivan had sent to City Attorney Paul Brown minor contracts 

and a major issue and after the meeting Mr. Cantrell asked for 

per diem then he replied no per diem.  City Mayor asked if Mr. 

Partington could outline contracts.  He said one of the contract 

portions was the old LEC agreement and a newer part added that 

needed to be changed. Also on the dispatch modifications, the 

county pays 50 percent of cost but has less than 50 percent of 

the calls and IT related to Law Enforcement.  Mr. Partington 

thought the two administrators and attorneys could handle the 

contracts.  

 

Dispatch needs to be a larger discussion by both parties on 

how to make it equal for city and county by possibly using an 

outside agency. 

 

Mayor Piros de Carvelho asked about setting a deadline for 

the contracts to be completed.  The Board thought a three-month 

deadline for the completion of the contracts was a start. 

    

Both parties agreed to meet quarterly in a joint study 

session with an itemized agenda. 



  

 

 

At 2:05 p.m. the meeting recessed until 9:00 a.m. for the 

regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, April 12th, 2022. 

 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

  



29 
 

March 29, 2022 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held a special 

agenda session at 9:00 a.m. for Reno County ARPA requests at the 

Annex Conference Room with Chairman Daniel Friesen, Commissioner 

Ron Hirst, Commissioner Ron Sellers, County Administrator Randy 

Partington, County Counselor Patrick Hoffman, and Minutes Clerk 

Cindy Martin, present.  

 

Presenters: Interfaith Housing Clint Nelson on housing, 

South Central Kansas Economic Development District (SCKEDD) 

Julia Westfahl, SCKEDD Mark Howell on housing, K-State 

University Dr. Bradford Wiles on childcare, KCCTO-KITS-ITSN 

Ashley M. Webster on childcare, Abundant Life Childcare Heather 

Faulkner on childcare, United Way, and Chair for OK Ready Denice 

Gilliland on childcare. 

  

Audience in attendance: The Hutchinson News John Green, 

Salvation Army Pathway of Hope Megan Niemeyer, Hutchinson 

Regional Health Care System Penny Stoss, United Way Lisa 

Gleason, Hutchinson Community Foundation Kari Mailloux and 

Aubrey Abbott Patterson, Hutchinson Chamber Chelsey Dawson, 

Interfaith Housing Lacy Stauffacher, Pastor Darryl Peterson.  

 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by 

a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Darryl Peterson, Grace 

Christian Church. 

 

 The Board outlined how the meeting would go to discuss the 

allocation of funds in three different buckets: childcare, 

economic development, and housing. 

 Mr. Friesen started with housing.   

Mr. Clint Nelson did a quick follow-up on proposal.  In 

smaller communities there is a volume of work to do, they liked 

our proposals for helping with housing.  We volunteered our 

time, funds, and resources to assist those communities. He spoke 

about State Allocation Plan (grant) money, and they could 

partner with other agencies like SCKEDD, small rural development 

funds were also available to assist with cost. While speaking to 

the communities we learned that each has their own list of 

needs. He requested keeping the rural piece of the project for 

consideration. 

 



30 
 

Mr. Howell briefly explained their housing plan for middle 

income housing by taking houses in bad need of repair and making 

them up to standards for homeowners. He said they were giving an 

incentive of $5,000 for a down payment on sustainable owning of 

these houses for the next 20-years.  He explained the funding 

plan and investments for complete financial assistance to 

potential homeowners. 

Ms. Westfahl spoke about a great model with experts in 

their fields and certifications for inspectors and testing 

completing a project in a timely manner. 

Ms. Gilliland read her presentation stating local partner 

had been making investments in childcare since 2015.  She 

introduced three core partners:  

Dr. Bradford Wiles speaking on outcomes and economic 

development regarding childcare.  The study will help to create 

an action plan to create and build systems of care for children.    

Ashley M. Webster speaking on impact for childcare of 

infant/toddler ages 0 to 3-years old and their brain development 

with socialization.  

Heather Faulkner spoke at length on several challenges as a 

childcare provider. 

Ms. Gilliland concluded with a joint request to the City of 

Hutchinson and Reno County for $9.8 million, one-time 

investments, breaking it down to $5 million for facilities, $3.8 

million for workers compensation, $1 million for ALICE services. 

The Board had a large discussion on the childcare issue.  

They spoke about the three buckets with potential numbers of $4 

to $4.5 million total housing, $4.6 to $4.8 childcare, Reno 

County needs.  The county had committed some of the ARPA funds 

to other projects.  Mr. Friesen proposed the City of Hutchinson 

put in matching funds of a reasonable amount out of their $6 

million.      

The Board requested Mr. Partington to make recommendations 

on last bucket for county needs and schedule SCKEDD and 

Interfaith Housing study session after April 26th agenda meeting. 

    

   



31 
 

 At 10:45 a.m. the meeting adjourned until 9:00 a.m. Tuesday, 

April 12, 2022. 

 

  

  

 Approved: 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

cm 

 



29 
 

April 12, 2022 

Reno County Annex 

        Hutchinson, Kansas 

 

The Board of Reno County Commissioners held an agenda 

session at the Annex Conference Room with Chairman Daniel 

Friesen, Commissioner Ron Sellers, and Commissioner Ron Hirst, 

County Administrator Randy Partington, County Counselor Patrick 

Hoffman, and County Clerk Donna Patton, present.   

  

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance followed by 

a short sectarian prayer led by Pastor Kim Biery with Trinity 

United Methodist Church.  

 

Mr. Friesen said Sheriff Darrian Campbell wanted to thank 

Senator Moran for visiting Reno County and the recent wildfire 

area. Senator Moran thanked the Fire Fighters and the community 

for their responses and offered to help ins any way he could. 

  

 Erica Laudick with the Kansas Children’s Service League read 

the Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation. Mr. Friesen 

proclaimed the month of April to be Child Abuse Prevention Month. 

 

 Erica Laudick with the Kansas Children’s Service League read 

the Week of the Young Child Proclamation. Mr. Friesen proclaimed 

the week of April 18th thru April 22nd as the week of the Young 

Child. The Board thanked them and appreciated the work they do. 

 

 Patrol Captain Levi Blumanhourst read the Law Enforcement 

Memorial Week Proclamation. Mr. Friesen proclaimed May 15, 2022, 

as Peace Officers’ Memorial Day and the week of May 15th thru May 

21st as National Police Week. Captain Blumanhourst invited the 

Board and the Public to observe the National Peace Officers’ 

Memorial Day on May 13, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. in front of the Law 

Enforcement Center. Mr. Hirst and Mr. Sellers said they had both 

attended the Memorial.  

 

 There was one public comment. Jason Tedder, 4310 W 

Blanchard Ave, Hutchinson, asked the Board to please find a 

solution to the trash that is blowing around at the Landfill. He 

lives just south of the Landfill and there is always trash in 

his yard. The Board agreed that we need to find a solution. Mr. 

Partington said that the Landfill is having a hard time hiring 

part-time workers and that they will continue to close on windy 

days.  

 

 There were no additions to the agenda.  

 



30 
 
 Mr. Hirst moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to approve the 

Consent Agenda consisting of items 6A through 6K, including the 

Accounts Payable Ledger for claims payable on April 1st, 2022, 

totaling $385,391.61; claims payable on April 8th, 2022, totaling 

$200,865.27; claims payable on April 15th, 2022, totaling 

$534,185.65; and also consisting of pending Added, Abated and 

Escaped Taxation Change Orders numbered 2022-180-183, 190-192, 

194-196 and 229; destroy past election material; approve Community 

Corrections Department of Corrections Juvenile Reinvestment Grant 

application for $80,000; approve Reno/Kingman Joint Fire District 

#1 (Pretty Prairie) to purchase a new 2021 Ram 1500 from Allen 

Samuels and outfit that vehicle for a total cost not to exceed 

$40,000; approve Public Works purchase of a 2022 Cab and Chassis 

with Bed from Rush Truck Centers, Park City, Kansas, for a cost of 

$146,021.26; approve Kansas Department of Transportation-Bureau of 

Local Projects FFY 2024 HRRR (High Risk Rural Roads) Signing 

Project; approve Planning Case #2021-15; Resolution #2022-10: A 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A REQUEST FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR 

JESSE KEIM TO ESTABLISH A MANUFACTURING FACILITY TO CONSTRUCT 

KITCHEN CABINEST AND OTHER WOOD PRODUCTS AT 11203 S OBEE ROAD; 

approve Planning Case #2022-01; Resolution #2022-11: A RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A REQUEST BY JASON AND CHRISTY WEST TO REZONE 

APPROXIMATELY 20.69 ACRES OF LAND FROM R-1–RURAL RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRCIT TO AG-AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AT 303 N MAYFIELD ROAD; 

approve Planning Case #2022-02 a request by Mark Yackley 

(Applicant: Ben Maser) to rezone approximately .20 acres of land 

from R-1 Rural Residential District to AG Agricultural District 

for the purpose of selling the area of land to Mr. Maser. The 

property is located on the East side of N. Willison Road, 

approximately 1,700 feet North of the intersection of N. Willison 

Road and E. 30th Avenue. The property address is 3602 N. Willison 

Road; Approve Resolution #2022-12: THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S CASH 

DRAWER RESOLUTION. Mr. Sellers asked if item 6J a request by Mr. 

Yackley to rezone approximately .20 acres was in agreement with 

what the fire proposal was, and the Board agreed to have larger 

parcels. County Counselor Patrick Hoffman stated that this 

complies with the current code. Mr. Sellers said he would approve 

this but would like to proceed in the future with the fire proposal 

recommendations. The consent agenda motion was approved by a roll 

call vote of 3-0.   

 

 Pam Paulsen with the Reno County Extension Office discussed 

their 2023 budget request. She discussed some changes they have 

made and asked the Board for a 5 1/2% increase from last year. 

2022 was $365,000 and this year they are asking for $385,000. 

 

 Liberty Thompson Intensive Supervision Officer with Community 

Corrections and Program Coordinator for the Reno County Drug Court 



31 
 
discussed their 2023 budget request. Last year they had 15 

graduates of the program and she explained that about 80% stay out 

of the justice system for at least 5 years. She is requesting 

$10,000 for their 2023 budget.   

 

 Meghan Miller Treasurer with the Reno County 4-H Fair 

discussed their 2023 budget request. She is requesting a $2,000 

increase for a total of $20,000 up from $18,000 which was last 

year’s request. She explained that they send out around 300 letters 

for sponsorships but not all are monetary that they receive. She 

discussed some activities that they will be having this year and 

talked about some expansion ideas and reaching out to more youth.  

 

 Debra Teufel with the Economic Development discussed their 

2023 budget request. She spoke about Market Hutch, Greater Hutch 

and Growth Inc. and their requests. She requested no increase for 

Market Hutch, staying at $14,000, for Greater Hutch a $14,000 

increase up from $36,000 to $50,000, and Growth Inc. to $20,000 up 

from $0 last year. She commented that Reno County needs more 

housing and daycare. The Board agreed and asked her to bring their 

new vision plan to the ARPA meeting on April 26, 2022.  

 

 Community Corrections Director Randy Regehr met with the 

Board to discuss a Community Corrections Adult Supervision and 

Behavioral Health Department of Corrections grant Application for 

$933.262.31 for FY’23. Mr. Sellers moved, seconded by Mr. Hirst, 

to approve the grant application. The motion was approved by a 

roll call vote of 3-0.   

 

 Jessica Susee, Juvenile Intake & Assessment Supervisor with 

Youth Services requested approval of the SFY2023 Kansas Department 

of Corrections Juvenile Services Comprehensive Plan Grant 

application. She then discussed the proposed budgets for graduated 

sanctions and prevention programs. She noted that they have had 

more transfer referrals noting that a lot of the referrals are 

coming from disruptions at school then match them with a mentor. 

She requested Community Corrections Juvenile Intensive Supervision 

Probation: $258,358.15 Community Corrections Case Management: 

$69,678.55 Youth Services Juvenile Intake & Assessment: 

$284,484.30 Court Services Immediate Intervention Program: $500.00 

for a total of $613,021.00 for the Graduated Sanctions Budget. She 

also requested $41,914.02 for Rise Up Reno Prevention Network 

School-Based Mentoring, which most of that will go to salary 

expenses. Mr. Sellers moved, seconded by Mr. Friesen, to approve 

the grant application. The motion was approved by a roll call vote 

of 3-0.   

 



32 
 
 Reno County Sheriff Darrian Campbell presented his annual 

update to the Board. They viewed a training video that 

Communications Specialist Laurie Moody created for them. He spoke 

about the Criminal Interdiction Unit in cooperation with Sedgwick 

County and the City of South Hutchinson PD, and the work they 

performed together for a drug bust. He spoke about the different 

styles of Leadership between Reno County and the Hutchinson Police 

Department but noted that they work well together. They are also 

starting to work with farmers and ranchers to build a relationship 

in case cattle are being brought in illegally to Reno County and 

sold.    

 

 County Administrator Randy Partington gave his report to 

the Board.  He briefly discussed the Financial Report (YTD) and 

the Monthly Department Reports. Mr. Sellers asked if Aging and 

Transportation Director Barbara Lilyhorn had installed the 

schedules in the bus shelters. Mr. Partington said he would 

visit with her and ask if that has been done. He informed the 

Board that the City of Hutchinson sent drafts for three 

agreements with Reno County. Mr. Partington and Mr. Hoffman will 

meet with Sheriff Campbell to review the drafts with him. Mr. 

Partington went over some numbers for the ARPA meeting that they 

will have on April 26, 2022. The commission misunderstood Mr. 

Partington’s $500,000 contingency amount and assumed that was 

for a consultant, which it was not.  The contingency was for 

audit costs, administrative oversight, possible consultant, and 

other unknown costs.  The commission stated they might consider 

a consultant, but not at that amount.   

 Mr. Hirst thanked businesses & citizens for their input and 

requests. He said he received a phone call on Saturday about an 

issue. He spoke to Mr. Partington and now they are looking into 

it. He asked the public to please use recyclable bags when 

shopping.  

 

 Mr. Sellers asked County Clerk Donna Patton if she would 

contact our Legislators to let them know that the watermark on the 

ballot bill is unnecessary and will cost the county a lot of money. 

He congratulated Karen Hammersmith on her award from TECH. He asked 

about the spreadsheet Mr. Partington has that shows the amount of 

ARPA funds and the amount that is left and the projections.     

  

 Mr. Friesen said he is softening a little on the use of 

housing investment ARPA funds He would like to leverage private 

investment to add some of their own funds and build new housing. 

Mr. Hirst said he would like to see more information about Mr. 

Friesen’s thoughts on this. He asked about the insurance claim on 



33 
 
the Courthouse Dome. Mr. Partington said the insurance company is 

waiting on the engineer’s report. He appreciated everyone that 

presented today.  

  

 

At 11:08 a.m. the meeting adjourned until 9:00 a.m. Tuesday, 

April 26, 2022.   

 

 Approved: 

 

  ________________________________________ 

  Chair, Board of Reno County Commissioners 

 

(ATTEST) 

 

_________________________     _________ 

Reno County Clerk       Date 

dp 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.D

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Approval to send Request for Qualifications pertaining to Reno County Shooting Range (landfill)

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:

A summary of the shooting range goals and estimated costs (internal) is attached from the Sheriff’s
Office.  By sending out a RFQ and getting a revised estimate of the cost, Reno County would not be
obligated to move forward on a project until so decided by the commission.  There are two methods of
financing that I feel works for this project.  The first is to allocate a yearly amount (pay as you go) for
range improvements that stays with the current budget practice and takes many years to finish.  For
2023, the Sheriff's Office has requested $75,000 for range improvements, compared with $15,000 that
has been budgeted for past annual budgets.  I mention this because with a pay as you go method, the
amount budgeted each year would determine how much work would be completed on the range during
that time.

The other financing method is to work with local banks to set up a lease/purchase option at low interest
rates for 10-15 years.  The lease/purchase option allows Reno County to build the overall project at
costs today and pay for it over the same number of years that would be budgeted for a pay as you go
method.  This method is legal for county governments to use for financing of building and equipment
projects.

ALL OPTIONS:
Authorize the county administrator to send out a Request for Qualifications on the shooting range.
Instruct the county administrator to send out a Request for Proposals for the shooting range.
Deny the request.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the request, authorizing the county administrator to send out a RFQ for Reno County shooting
range.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
Sending out a RFQ does not have a fiscal impact.  Any financial obligation would take place if the a
contractor was selected and work began on the design/build process.  Future fiscal impacts of a project
would be dependent on the financing method selected by the county commission.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

DESIGN PROFESSIONAL TO PROVIDE 

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION PROPOSALS 

Reno County, Kansas 

 

 

 

I. INVITATION 

 

Reno County is interested in obtaining the services of a professional, highly qualified design 

professional firm (architect or engineer) to provide design and construction proposals for a shooting 

range and training facility for the Reno County Sheriff’s Department. 

 

Interested and qualified firms who have demonstrated their ability at comparable work are invited 

to submit qualifications. 

 

RFQs will be accepted until 5:00 P.M. on Monday, June 6th, 2022. Submittals and requests for 

information relative to this Request for Qualifications should be addressed to: 

 

 

Reno County 

Attn: Randy Partington, County Administrator 

206 W. 1st Ave 
Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2929  

E-Mail:  randy.partington@renogov.org 

 

Written responses and all supporting materials must be submitted via email or through the U.S. 

Postal Service. 

 

Please note that Reno County is not asking for, nor authorizing, your soliciting quotes from 

contractors or suppliers. 

 

 

mailto:rdukellis@ci.poway.ca.us


 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The County is seeking a qualified design professional firm for the design and construction of a 

shooting range and training facility for the Reno County Sheriff’s Department. The project shall 

consist of a complete and detailed design for the construction of the facility by a licensed design 

professional (architect or engineer or both) licensed to practice in the State of Kansas. All proposals 

shall comply with the requirements of the Technical Profession Act, K.S.A. 74-7001 et seq. 

regarding the design of public buildings. The design shall be approved by Reno County and based 

on meetings between the design professional and Reno County Officials to determine the basic 

design  and minimum criteria for the project. The design professional shall be responsible for 

construction management of the approved design at or below the approved cost, as well as 

construction inspection for the project.  

 

II. CONTRACT LENGTH 

 

This is a request for qualifications. If a design professional is selected they shall make a proposal 

for a design contract for this project only. General information regarding the expectations or range 

for the design firm’s services is requested as part of this Request for Qualifications. 

 

 

III. RIGHTS OF THE COUNTY 

 

This RFQ is not in any way to be construed as an agreement, obligation or other contract between 

the County and any person or firm submitting a proposal, nor does it obligate the County to pay 

for any costs incurred in preparation and submission of proposals or in anticipation of a contract. 

Proposals submitted in response to this request become the property of the County and are subject 

to the provisions of the Kansas Opens Records Law after the announcement of award is made. The 

County may investigate the qualifications of any proposer under consideration, require 

confirmation of information furnished by the proposer and require additional evidence or 

qualifications to perform the services described in this RFQ. 

 

Contract award will be made, at the sole discretion of the County, based on the evaluation of all 

responses, applying all criteria and oral interviews is determined to be the best qualified to perform 

the scope of services. The County's decision to select a Design firm. No right of review or appeal 

of the decision to appoint a Design firm will be considered. The County reserves the right to: 

 

A. Obtain clarification of any point in a proposer's response or to obtain additional 

information necessary to properly evaluate a particular response. 

B. Reject any or all proposals. 

C. Cancel the Request for Proposal in part or in its entirety without explanation to the 

proposers. 

D. Issue subsequent Requests for Proposal. 

E. Remedy technical errors in the Request for Proposal process. 

F. Approve or disapprove the use of particular subcontractors. 



G. Negotiate with any, all or none of the proposers. 

H. Solicit best and final offers from all or some of the proposers. 

I. Award a contract to one (1) or more proposers. 

J. Accept other than the lowest offer. 

K. Waive informalities and irregularities in proposals. 

 

 

 

VII. SELECTION PROCESS 

 

The Contract award will be made after selection of one (1) respondent’s qualification from among 

all respondents with implementation of services to follow.  However, this RFQ does not indicate 

a commitment by the County to award a contract to any successful respondent.  An award of 

contract is estimated to occur within approximately thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of 

qualifications. 

 

The County intends to evaluate the proposed services based upon the data presented in response 

to the RFQ. The qualifications will then be reviewed based on qualifications, specific experience, 

references, familiarity with the services and pricing, and then rated according to which company 

best meets the County’s requirements. 

 

Those firms whose qualifications most closely meet the needs of the Reno County will be required 

to attend an interview with the Reno County staff at a mutually agreeable time to be determined. 

 

 

VIII. KEY CONSIDERATIONS & EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 

A. Key Considerations 

 

The RFQ responses will be evaluated based upon the following: 

 

1. Perceived ability of design firm to design and manage construction of a 

completed contract at or below budget. 

2. Completed projects on behalf of clients similar to the County. 

3. Design firm’s knowledge of the industry. 

4. Design firm’s and other assigned staff’s availability and accessibility. 

5. The experience, professional credentials and references of those persons who 

will actually be providing work product on the project. 

6. Design firm’s conceptual approach and ideas related to design and construction 

management. 

7. Other criteria identified during the RFQ process. 

 

 

 

 

 



IX. QUALIFICATIONS 

 

To assist in the evaluation please provide the following information: 

 

A. Firm name, address, and contact information. 

B. Telephone and Internet address. 

C. Type of firm: individual, partnership, corporation, subsidiary, or government 

entity. 

D. Organizational structure of the firm, history, including number of years in 

existence, number and location of offices, total number of employees. 

E. Describe the ability of your firm to provide service in Reno County. 

F. Names and titles of all principals/officers of the firm (name, title, phone number). 

G. List applicable certifications and licenses and the associated numbers. 

H. How many years has your firm been providing design build and construction 

management services? 

I. Discuss your company’s resources and activities as they relate to knowledge and 

understanding of the project. 

J. Describe your design and construction process and timelines. 

K. Provide evidence your company carries all applicable insurance coverages. 

 

X. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

All Requests for Qualifications and related materials become the property of Reno County and 

may be returned only at its option. 

 

Reno County is not obligated to accept any RFQ or to negotiate with any respondent. All 

transactions are subject to the final approval of Reno County who reserves the right to reject any 

or all qualifications without cause or liability.  All costs directly or indirectly related to responding 

to this RFQ (including all costs incurred in supplementary documentation, information, or 

presentation) will be borne by the respondent. 

 

The selected Design Professional will be required to enter into an agreement with Reno County, 

following the approval of an agreed upon price, prior to commencement of any design work. 

 

 

XI. FEE INFORMATION 

 

A. Describe your method of compensation for your services.  



                           RENO COUNTY  
              Sheriff:    Darrian Campbell                       Sheriff’s Office  
    Undersheriff:    Shawn McHaley                    206 West First Ave.  
                                                                      Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5298  
                                                              (620)694-2735 office (620) 694-2702 Fax  
                                                          TDD : Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777  

  
  

 

Purpose of the Reno County Sheriff’s Office 

Training and Range Facility 
 

 

The goal of the training facility is to enhance and provide required and necessary 

training in order to prepare local Law Enforcement to provide the highest level of public 

service possible to the residents and visitors of Reno County.  The training facility will 

accommodate or have the ability to accommodate most types of training for local law 

enforcement including: statutory firearm qualification requirements, long range precision 

shooting (up to 400 yards), chemical munitions training (CS gas and OC), basic handgun 

and basic rifle classes, tactical team and sniper training, armored vehicle operations, less 

than lethal trainings, basic SWAT courses and force on force trainings, Taser and 

defensive tactics trainings, police K9 training, and drone operations training.  Additionally, 

a classroom and building would be able to support numerous courses which are 

classroom and presentation based such as homicide courses, interviewing, mental health 

classes, SANE/SART classes, and legal updates just to name a few.  The facility will 

accommodate other law enforcement agencies from Reno County to include, South 

Hutchinson Police Department, Haven Police Department, USD 309 Police Department, 

Kansas Department of Corrections (HCF), Buhler Police Department, Hutchinson Fire 

Department, and the Hutchinson Police Department.  Additionally, the training facility will 

be available for other regional agencies the Sheriff’s Office trains with including Harvey 

County, Newton Police Department, McPherson County, McPherson PD, Pratt County, 

and KHP to name a few.  Another consideration for the training facility with a training 

building and classroom is the ability of the Sheriff’s Office to support community outreach 

opportunities such as the ability to host Hunter Education courses or other community 

geared events.   
 

  

 

 







AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.E

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Harlen Depew

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Consider for Approval,  Compensation to GLMV Architects for the Additional Design Work on the
Courthouse Dome in the amount of $16,500.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The additional engineering and architectural services required to design the replacement of the dome
substrate is beyond the original scope of work on this project.  This additional cost will cover all work
done to date by GLMV Architectural, and by Brent Engelland, EC Consultants, as well as the additional
site visits and consultation required for the next four months, thru the projected completion of the
additional work.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve the proposal.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve proposed cost of $16,500 

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The additional cost may be covered by insurance, pending determination of coverage on this additional
scope of work.  If coverage is denied, we may be able to get partial reimbursement in the form of State
Tax Credits thru KSHS.







AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #6.F

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Mark Vonachen - County Planner II

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Planning Case #2022-02 - A resolution approving a request by Mark Yackley (Applicant: Ben Maser)
to rezone approximately .2 acres of land from R-1 - Rural Residential District to AG - Agricultural
District at 3602 N. Willison Road.

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this request by a 5-0 vote on March 17, 2022.
 
The County Commissioners approved of this request by a 3-0 vote on April 12, 2022.
 
This resolution journalizes the County Commissioners' decision.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approval of the resolution as submitted.
 
Deny the resolution.
 
Return to staff the resolution with requested changes.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval of the resolution.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
None









AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.A

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Tony Finlay, Hutchinson Recreation Commission Executive Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Arts & Humanities Council 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time





AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.B

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Tony Finlay, Executive Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Hutchinson Recreation Commission 2023 Budget Request for Special Park & Recreation Funds

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time





AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.C

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Dave Johnston, EMS Chief

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Emergency Medical Services 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time.



 
 
 
 

Reno County Emergency Medical Service 
at Hutchinson Regional Medical Center 

 

1701 East 23rd Avenue  ∙   Hutchinson, KS  67502 

 
To:        Mr. Randy Partington, County Administrator 
 
From:    Dave Johnston, Chief, Reno County Emergency Medical Services   
 
Date:  March 25, 2022             
             
Subject:  2023 HRMC / Reno County Emergency Medical Services Budget Request  
 
 
The Hutchinson Regional Medical Center (HRMC) is proud to partner with Reno County to 
provide Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to our community. The long partnership has been 
fruitful in providing quality care to our citizens during their time of need.  The demand for EMS 
continues to climb in the community. In 2021 there was an overall 11% increase to over 8,200 
requests for EMS. Over the next several years there will continue to be a steady increase in the 
annual call volume for EMS due to a direct correlation with the age of our community. The 2023 
budget request is based upon the continued trend of increased call volume for EMS.  A detailed 
request for HRMC to provide EMS for Reno County is attached for review.  The proposed 
budget outlines a request for Reno County to cover a projected operating deficit of $1,816,889.  
Details on the projected revenues, expenditures, capital requests and peer comparisons are 
outlined below.          
    
Revenues: Patient transports are directly linked to revenue charges which have increased over 
the past year following a downturn that occurred at the height of pandemic. Transport volume is 
estimated to increase by 4% which translates to anticipated increased charges of $7,802,277. 
Contractual adjustments have leveled to approximately 71% of charges. There is also an 
anticipated bump in reimbursement rates for Medicaid & Medicare patients to help drive up the 
overall adjusted gross revenue to $2,273,310 which is a 4% increase over previous years.  
 

   

Revenues     
  Charges (Transports)  $       $7,802,277 
  Contractual Adjustments (71%)  $     ($5,528,967) 
  Adjusted gross revenue  $       $2,273,310 
      
Expenditures   
  Operating expenses  $      ($3,768,200) 
  Capital Equipment   $          ($322,000) 
  Total operating expenses  $       ($4,090,199) 
      

  Total Operating Deficit  $        ($1,816,889) 
 

shonda.arpin
Revised

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
4-21-2022



1701 East 23rd Avenue  ∙   Hutchinson, KS  67502 
 

Expenditures: Operational expenses are estimated to increase 5.2% to $3,768,200.  The most 
significant increase is a 6% salary adjustment to retain and attract EMS providers.  The 
adjustments will bring salaries in line with other EMS agencies in the region.  There is a 
significant paramedic shortage across Kansas that has driven up salaries. Daily staffing has been 
shifted to include more EMT’s and AEMT’s in lieu of paramedics while still maintaining 
response readiness. The secondary reason for the increase in operational expenditures is directly 
related to increased supply and fuel costs.  A 30% increase has been requested in medical 
supplies and a 15% increase has been requested to cover fuel costs.  The significant increase in 
supplies and fuel costs may be transitory if markets stabilize but the budget requests were 
predicated on current cost with a slight increase.     
 
Capital Expenditures:  A detailed capital budget is enclosed for a proposed total of $322,000.  
Capital request include a new ambulance purchase and a lease payment for previous fleet 
acquisitions. The 2023 ambulance replacement is part of a long-term fleet plan designed to 
modernize & decrease fleet maintenance costs.  The 2023 ambulance request is a duplicate 
request that was also submitted for ARPA funding through Reno County.   Additional capital 
budget items include the final payment for three defibrillators.  
 
Peer Comparison: HRMC/Reno County EMS will continue to work diligently to assure revenue 
collections are maximized and expenditures are kept in check. Every effort will be made to 
provide quality service while minimizing the tax burden on Reno County. Outlined below is a 
comparison of liked-sized EMS agencies and the percent of tax support required to cover yearly 
operating expenditures. The requested tax support for the 2023 proposed budget is 44% of 
expenditures and capital expenses which is below comparable agencies.   
 

$454,090    

   2023 Proposed Budget 2022 Budget 2022 Budget 
Agency Reno Co EMS Butler Co EMS Riley Co EMS 
Call Volume 8,226 5,500 5,211 
FTE 36 45 54 
Expenditures $3,768,200 $3,553,643 $3,846,684 
Capital Equipment $322,000 $454,090    
Charges Collected $2,273,310 $2,000,000 $1,203,688 
Tax Support $1,816,889 $2,007,733 $2,642,996 
% Tax Support 44% 50% 69% 
% User Fees 56% 50% 31% 

 
HRMC is committed to being a good steward of the resources provided by the citizens of Reno 
County.  The requested budget is a conservative estimate of the resources needed to provide 
quality services.  Every effort will be made to minimize costs while still maintaining the quality 
of care expected by our community.   
 
Respectfully,  

 
Dave Johnston, Chief, Reno County EMS 



2023 2022 2023-2022 2021
Budget Budget % Change Actual

Revenue
  Charges 7,787,277$      6,830,945$       14% 7,411,656$    
  Other income (Standbys) 15,000 12000
  Total Revenue 7,802,277 6,830,945 14% 7,423,656

Deductions from Revenue 71%71%71% 68% 72%
  Contractual Adjustments 4,976,070 4,041,187 23% 4,811,908
  Uninsured Discount/Charity Care 552,897 603,856 -8% 554,516
  Total Revenue Deductions 5,528,967 4,645,043 19% 5,366,424

Adjusted gross revenue 2,273,310 2,185,902 4% 2,057,232

Expenses
  Salaries 2,301,502        2,171,229         6% 2,086,862
  Payroll Benefits          594,933           586,141            2% 518,805
  Patient Billing, Accounting & Administration 176,000           176,000            0% 176,100
  Maintenance, Utilities & Housekeeping 57,140             57,140              0% 55,180
  Office Supplies 2,340               2,340                0% 0
  Med/Surg Supplies 132,600           102,000            30% 133,236
  Drugs 39,140             39,140              0% 25,861
  Supplies-other 15,000             15,000              0% 56,550
  Uniforms 10,800             12,000              -10% 9,105
  Oxygen 5,720               5,720                0% 4,872
  Travel 8,700               10,000              -13% 1,057
  Minor Equipment 40,000             40,000              0% 31,622
  Repairs 20,000             20,000              0% 9,414
  Laundry 16,692             16,692              0% 16,366
  Auto. Maint. & Fuel 144,785           125,900            15% 151,392
  Telephone/Internet 5,264               9,570                -45% 3,236
  Continuing Education, Subscriptions, Dues 5,805               5,692                2% 13,034
  Insurance             38,213             37,100              3% 27,813
  Workers Compensation 96,915             96,915              0% 92,239
  Volunteer services 56,650             55,000              3% 62,430
Total operating expenses 3,768,200 3,583,579 5.2% 3,475,175

Net (operating expenses - adjusted  gross rev) (1,494,889) (1,397,676) 7.0% (1,417,943)
Capital Equipment 322,000 305,000 5.6% 82,432

Total Projected  County Subsidy (1,816,889)$    (1,702,676)$     6.7% (1,500,375)$   

HUTCHINSON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER / RENO COUNTY EMS
1701 E 23rd Ave  Hutchinson, KS 67502

2023 BUDGET REQUEST
(updated 3/25/22)



Major
Captial

Minor
Equipment

New Ambulance (Replacement) 225,000$                 

Zoll Monitors Payment (#4 of 4) 25,000                     

Ambulance Lease Payment (2022 New & Remount lease) (2 of 5) 72,000                     

Computer Equipment:
    Ipads x 3 (replacement) $1,800
Laptops  x 2 (replacement) 1,600            

Batteries (Rechargable replacement for multiple systems) 5,000            

Radio (Encryption update) 5,000            

Stryker Stair Chairs x 1 (replacment) 2,000            

Disposable Video Laryngoscopes 2,000            

Laerdal Suction Unit 900               

Splinting Equipment (Sager): 3,000            

Equipment Bags 2,000            

Stryker Maintenance Agreement payment 12,000          

Contingency 4,700            

Totals 322,000$                 40,000$        

HUTCHINSON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER / RENO COUNTY EMS
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 2023



Hutchinson Regional Medical Center/Reno County EMS
Major Capital Equipment Projections 2023-2027

Year Equipment Estimated Cost 5 Year Cost

2023 Ambulance $225,000
2022 Amb Lease Payment  #2 of 5 72,000           
Zoll Monitor/Defib Payment #4 of 4 25,000           

$322,000 $322,000

2024 EMS Station #3 Replacment (Arlington) $500,000
2022 Amb Lease Payment  #3 of 5 72,000           

$572,000 $572,000

2025 Ambulance Remount $145,000
2022 Amb Lease Payment  #4 of 5 72,000           
Zoll Monitor/Defib Payment #1 of 4 29,000           

$246,000 $246,000

2026 EMS Station #4 (Northwest Hutchinson) $600,000
Ambulance Remount 150,000         
2022 Amb Lease Payment  #5 of 5 72,000           
Zoll Monitor/Defib Payment #2 of 4 29,000           

$851,000 $851,000

2027 Ambulance Remount $150,000
Supervisor Vehicle 85,000           

$235,000 $235,000

$2,226,000 Five Year Total Cost

Updated 4/21/2022



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.D

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Mike Garrett, Chief Executive Officer

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Horizons Mental Health 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time









Number of Self Pay Clients 
of Horizons MHC and Reno 
     County by Calendar Year

Document #1

Calendar Year 2017 Calendar Year 2018 Calendar Year 2019 Calendar Year 2020 Calendar Year 2021
County

Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %

HMHC - Total Open Cases 5,798 6,094  5,932  6,228  6,628   6,866  6,634  5,923   5,956   
HMHC - Total Self Pay 1,500 26% 1,733  28% 1,971  33% 1,931  31% 2,226   34% 2,172  32% 2,117  31.90% 2,599   43.89% 2,323   39.20%

Reno County -Total Cases* 4,955 85% 4,836  79% 5,005  84% 5,353  86% 5,679   86% 5,500  80% 4,865  73.30% 4,620   78% 4,410   74%
Reno County- Self Pay** 1,253 25% 1,503  31% 1,685  34% 1,734  32% 1,966   35% 1,844  34% 1,683  34.60% 2,105   46% 1,896   43%

* Percent of cases from Reno
County

**Percent of Reno County cases 
that are self pay

Calendar Year 2014Calendar Year 2013 Calendar Year 2015 Calendar Year 2016

Document #1



Horizons Mental Health Center

Funding Analysis from Reno County

CY08 thru CY21

Document #2

Calendar Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2108 2019 2020 2021

Dollar Amount $410,000 $410,000 $408,000 $367,200 410,000 410,000 410,000 410,000 410,000 410,000 430,500 430,500 430,500 452,025
Percent Change 5% 0% -0.05% -10% 11.70% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 0% 0% 5%
Cumulative Change 7.60% 7.60% 7.55% -2.45% 8.40% 8.40% 8.40% 8.40% 8.40% 8.40% 13.90% 13.90% 13.90% 18.50%

Calendar Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Inflation Rate 3.85% -0.345 1.95% 3.16% 2.07% 1.50% 1.60% 0.12% 2.07% 2.10% 2.44% 1.76% 0.62% 4.70%
Cumulative Rate 22.70% 22.36% 24.31% 27.47% 29.31% 30.81% 32.40% 32.52% 34.59% 36.60% 39.04% 40.80% 41.42% 46.12%



Horizons Mental Health Center
Statement of Revenue and Expense

Document #3

Prior Prior Yr Prior Prior Yr
Actual Budget Variance % Change Year Variance Actual Budget Variance % Change Year Variance

Total inpatient revenue
893,813    1,283,813  (390,000)      -30.38% 1,073,524  (179,711)      Revenue from outpatients 7,593,638   11,104,983  (3,511,345)   -31.62% 8,219,373            (625,735)      

Physician services revenue
893,813    1,283,813  (390,000)      -30.38% 1,073,524  (179,711)      Total patient revenue 7,593,638   11,104,983  (3,511,345)   -31.62% 8,219,373            (625,735)      

171,486    260,026    (88,540)        -34.1% 215,136    (43,649)        Contractual Adjustments 1,435,403   2,080,208   (644,805)      -31.0% 1,841,305            (405,902)      
35,584      40,843      (5,260)          -12.9% 22,038      13,546          Charity Care 256,042      326,746      (70,704)        -21.6% 187,431               68,611          
6,182        65,872      (59,690)        -90.6% 9,535        (3,352)          Other deductions 53,222        526,978      (473,756)      -89.9% 76,930                 (23,708)        
8,610        34,634      (26,024)        -75.1% 34,198      (25,588)        Provision for bad debt 114,574      277,073      (162,499)      -58.7% 282,474               (167,899)      

221,863    401,376    (179,513)      -212.7% 280,906    (59,044)        Total deductions from revenue 1,859,242   3,211,005   (1,351,764)   -201.2% 2,388,140            (528,898)      

671,950    882,437    (210,487)      -23.9% 792,617    (120,667)      Net patient revenue 5,734,396   7,893,977   (2,159,582)   -27.4% 5,831,233            (96,838)        
525,047    461,861    63,186          13.7% 337,122    187,925        Other operating revenue 4,614,278   3,694,886   919,392        24.9% 3,638,108            976,170        

1,196,997  1,344,298  (147,302)      -10.17% 1,129,739  67,258          Total operating revenue 10,348,674  11,588,864  (1,240,190)   -2.48% 9,469,341            879,333        

Expenses
772,501    892,724    (120,223)      -13.5% 687,501    85,000          Salaries 6,167,839   7,141,790   (973,951)      -13.6% 5,719,689            448,149        
21,033      32,145      (11,112)        -34.6% 25,897      (4,864)          Purchased labor 176,623      257,160      (80,537)        -31.3% 179,857               (3,235)          

293,743    290,141    3,602            1.2% 256,694    37,049          Employee benefits 2,379,569   2,321,127   58,441          2.5% 2,055,041            324,527        
-            -            -               0.0% -            -               Physician Fees -              -              -               0.0% -                       -               

22,221      42,707      (20,486)        -48.0% 39,238      (17,017)        Rent 174,659      341,653      (166,995)      -48.9% 332,065               (157,406)      
12,852      15,593      (2,741)          -17.6% 15,582      (2,730)          Utilities 103,890      124,740      (20,850)        -16.7% 109,764               (5,874)          
2,329        5,025        (2,696)          -53.7% 1,438        891              Maintenance 30,421        40,200        (9,779)          -24.3% 20,490                 9,931            

83,844      60,424      23,420          38.8% 69,485      14,359          Purchased services 456,517      483,394      (26,876)        -5.6% 314,200               142,317        
7,341        10,090      (2,750)          -27.3% 10,350      (3,009)          Other Supplies 71,911        80,722        (8,811)          -10.9% 58,070                 13,841          

28,274      22,847      5,427            23.8% 32,048      (3,774)          Computer software services 220,588      182,776      37,812          20.7% 150,150               70,438          
34,087      49,903      (15,815)        -31.7% 69,766      (35,679)        Other 336,783      399,222      (62,439)        -15.6% 291,183               45,600          

1,278,225  1,421,598  (143,373)      -10.1% 1,207,999  70,226          Total expense 10,118,799  11,372,785  (1,253,986)   -11.0% 9,230,510            888,289        

(81,228)$   (77,300)$   (3,929)$        5.1% (78,260)$   (2,969)$        *EBIDA 229,875$    216,079$    13,796$        6.4% 238,831$             (8,956)$        

-6.8% -5.8% -1.0% 18.0% -6.9% 0.1% EBIDA as percent of net revenue 2.2% 1.9% 0.4% 19.1% 2.5% -0.3%

-            -            -               0.0% 40             (40)               Interest 6                 -              6                  0.00% 10,116                 (10,111)        
17,561      26,955      (9,394)          -34.9% 19,667      (2,106) Depreciation 322,010      215,642      106,368        49.33% 140,265               181,745

(98,790)$   (104,255)$ 5,465$          -5.2% (97,967)$   (823)$           Operating margin (92,140)$     437$           (92,578)$      -21163.5% 88,450$               (180,590)$    

340$         -$              340              #DIV/0! -$              340$             Investment Income 3,319$        -$                3,319$          #DIV/0! -$                         3,319            
(122,766)   12,500      (135,266)      -1082.1% (10,818)     (111,948)      Investment Interest Income (57,245)       100,000      (157,245)      -157.3% 1,269,959            (1,327,204)   

-                -                -               0.0% -                -               Gain or Loss On Disposal -                  -                  -                   0.0% -                          -               
(4,399)       833           (5,233)          -627.9% 574           (4,973)          Other (64,563)       6,667          (71,230)        -1068.5% 6,368                   (70,932)        

(126,825)$ 13,333$    (140,158)$    -1051.19% (10,244)$   (116,581)$    Total other nonoperating income (118,489)$   106,667$    (225,156)$    -211.08% 1,276,327$          (1,394,817)$  

(225,615)$ (90,922)$   (134,693)$    148.1% (108,211)$ (117,404)$    Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenses (210,630)$   107,104$    (317,734)$    -296.7% 1,364,777$          (1,575,407)$  

-8.25% -7.76% -0.50% -8.67% 0.4% Operating Margin % -0.89% 0.00% -0.89% 0.93% -1.8%

-21.08% -6.70% -14.38% -9.67% -11.41% Excess (Deficiency) Percent -2.06% 0.92% -2.98% 12.70% -14.76%

MTD YTD

For The Month and Year To Date Ended February 28, 2022



Document #4
Provider (Multiple Items)

Sum of Total Hours Year
Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Grand Total
ADULT OP 11,644.88 10,266.73 10,103.97 9,112.71 9,582.01 11,567.91 14,308.64 13,368.55 11,251.71 9,088.41 8,418.56 118,714.09
BEHAVORIAL HEALTH CONSULTATION 228.36 418.72 53.71 3.09 703.87
BLOCK GRANT FUNDING 21.28 246.02 91.45 1.53 2.75 0.98 364.01
CHILDREN OP 10,887.87 10,924.04 11,263.07 10,358.74 8,678.86 9,749.90 12,303.32 11,978.38 11,142.92 8,893.87 9,121.31 115,302.28
CHILDRENS ADVOCACY 493.31 2,274.78 487.90 288.44 993.75 4,538.18
COMMUNITY BASED SERVICES 50,428.50 57,969.80 57,690.21 55,952.00 49,582.25 52,736.75 54,976.18 66,101.35 66,514.88 41,467.39 24,258.03 577,677.35
COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES 14,669.51 13,083.07 11,949.37 10,409.99 9,158.23 9,123.05 11,990.21 9,069.33 7,668.04 6,260.99 5,522.19 108,903.98
CRISIS 140.75 92.59 124.97 194.62 322.63 445.07 646.72 545.32 467.30 382.01 533.78 3,895.75
DRUG COURT 45.77 132.01 210.87 305.29 116.13 60.05 870.11
EMPLOYEE ASSISSTANCE PROGRAM 7.00 20.30 14.22 3.82 10.02 19.40 43.69 66.29 45.57 230.29
GMHI ALLOCATION 73.87 647.29 383.50 20.65 2.48 1,127.79
INPATIENT HOSPITAL 3,520.98 3,288.38 3,059.34 2,890.37 2,042.15 1,725.12 1,549.02 1,202.43 11.75 16.99 19,306.53
JAIL 33.57 111.02 174.14 97.02 121.10 157.62 694.45
MEDICAL SERVICES 5,639.45 5,004.15 4,251.40 4,448.61 4,724.49 4,442.14 4,661.26 4,259.15 4,015.20 3,632.17 3,236.78 48,314.80
No Program 670.97 500.92 875.28 324.20 116.23 135.65 4.98 15.58 15.73 10.53 26.11 2,696.19
PRATT COUNTY 2.10 0.25 2.35
PRTF 809.48 701.95 281.31 229.28 288.18 210.22 362.99 231.13 213.59 166.20 107.72 3,602.04
RECOVERY SUPPORT INITIATIVE 11.00 151.60 152.37 23.49 0.08 338.54
RENO COUNTY 42.08 246.75 210.08 120.42 23.53 1.47 0.50 5.20 12.44 662.47
SERVICE ALT PROGRAM CLINICAL 15.65 109.47 115.69 118.71 179.03 133.94 93.45 37.46 2.42 4.22 810.03
SERVICE ALT PROGRAM MEDICAL 6.77 48.29 18.03 2.25 0.33 0.25 75.93
SOARS 230.29 456.32 86.14 36.31 335.50 228.72 288.80 302.79 1,964.87
SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SVC 8.75 212.07 88.67 46.89 149.77 238.58 524.27 433.48 286.07 428.35 2,416.89
HEALTH HOME 2,179.95 2.92 0.75 2,183.62
HARPER COUNTY 0.67 0.67
REFORM FUNDING 3.00 16.05 16.53 0.30 35.88
BARBER COUNTY 5.00 0.50 5.50
PATIENT ASSISTANCE 0.40 0.40
SERVICE ALT PROGRAM CBS 2.50 2.50
OPIOID GRANT - MAT 5.05 5.05
CHRONIC CONTROLLED MGMT 51.08 2.63 1.22 54.94
ABC 152.37 37.38 73.77 263.52
SPMI 32.57 27.38 32.69 92.64
SUNRISE HOUSE 3,151.68 7,435.66 5,992.54 16,579.88
THERAPEUTIC CENTER 1,464.02 3,949.15 7,281.22 12,694.39
SED WAIVER 5,219.79 15,748.90 20,968.69
ONE CARE KANSAS 112.39 645.48 757.87
PCIT 166.37 107.22 273.58
SMI 0.87 14.69 15.56
MEDICATION ASSISTED TREATMENT 21.27 21.27
ACT TEAM 285.42 285.42
SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM 131.49 131.49
Grand Total 98,412.39 101,865.31 100,127.38 95,706.21 85,990.11 92,979.94 102,215.88 110,881.66 107,795.31 88,047.53 83,563.94 1,067,585.66

Horizons Mental Health Center
Hours by Provider & Program

Reno County Yearly Comparison



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.E

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Michael Ables, Executive Director

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reno County Museum 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time



















AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.F

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Jackson Swearer, Entrepreneur Navigator & Program Director, and
David Dukart, Program Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
StartUp Hutch 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is needed at this time



 

            One East Ninth Ave. 
      Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

 
March 25, 2022 
 
Randy Partington 
Reno County Administrator 
206 W First Ave 
Hutchinson, KS  67501 
 
RE:  2023 Budget Allocation 
 
Dear Mr. Partington: 
 
In 2022, StartUp Hutch received a budget allocation of $70,000 from the County. This letter serves as a request 
for the allocation of $80,000 for fiscal year 2023 to StartUp Hutch (a $10,000 increase).  
 
Funding from the County will be matched and leveraged by other local investment in StartUp Hutch. 
Hutchinson Community College provides in-kind services, valued conservatively at approximately $35,000, 
including but not limited to, rent-free office space and accounting and administrative support. Hutchinson 
Community Foundation has committed $90,000/year for this 5-year initiative. Additionally, we had asked the 
City of Hutchinson, over a 3-year period, to ramp up its funding to equal the County’s. When we started this 
initiative, the Reno County Entrepreneurship Task Force proposed that the City and County would equalize at 
$70,000 by Year 3, and then increase to $80,000 in Year 4, which is 2023. In 2022, we received $50,000 from 
the City, and our plan calls for an increase of $30,000 from the City in 2023. It remains our goal to establish 
equitable and sustainable levels of funding from our local partners. 
 
As our community and country recover from the COVID pandemic, we are continuing to see new opportunities 
for local entrepreneurs to start and expand their businesses. StartUp Hutch adopted new client management 
software in July 2021, and in only the second half of last year the organization served 69 clients. In 2021, 
StartUp Hutch loaned out $475,000 generating well over $1 million in economic activity. Survey data from 15 
of our 20 current borrowers indicated that they collectively generated over $7.8 million in revenue last year 
and created 46 new part-time and full-time jobs in 2021. Our small businesses and entrepreneurs are key 



drivers of local economic activity and job creation, and StartUp Hutch is a critical piece of our community’s 
support for those businesses. 
 
We are approaching Year 4 of this 5-year initiative, which was developed by many community partners. We 
are also coming out of an unprecedented pandemic. The Task Force has been reconvened as the Reno County 
Entrepreneurship Ecosystem Partnership. That partnership is in the process of revising our collective action 
plan to promote entrepreneurship in Reno County. Our analysis is that the economy remains in a period of 
disruption. StartUp Hutch, along with key community partners, will work together to ensure Reno County can 
take advantage of changes to our economy that result from the pandemic recovery.  
 
We hope that Reno County will continue its leadership in the development and funding of Entrepreneurship 
programs in our community. We believe that investment from Reno County is critical to support the partnership 
of organizations who work together to promote economic development in Reno County. We are promoting 
new business growth that will draw, capture, and develop a stock of small business owners who will start the 
next chapter of organic economic development in our county. Given our current economy, it is more important 
than ever that we support local entrepreneurs. 
 
We understand this request with its multiple partners may need more detailed discussions and information.  
We would appreciate the opportunity to meet with you at the appropriate time to continue these discussions. 
 
Sincerely, 
               
 
 
       
Jackson Swearer      Jeni Bryan  
Entrepreneur Navigator     Board Chair 



Budget Breakdown

BOCC Request for FY23 - $80,000

*Budgets do not reflect in-kind contributions from HCC



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #7.G

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Brenda Maxey and Kevin Hess

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
T.E.C.H. 2023 Budget Request

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
No action is requested at this time.



shonda.arpin
Received











AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.A

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Rick Beins, Employee Benefits Consultant from USI

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
USI Overview of Plan Performance and Strategies to Improve Performance

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Rick Beins will give an overview of the Reno County Health Plan performance in 2021.  In reviewing
our plan performance, Rick will make recommendations to increase the performance of our plan from a
business standpoint and the member experience.  The strategies are to reduce the costs of the claims for
Infusion drugs and Prescription drugs. 
 
Payer Matrix offers patient assistance for high cost infusion drugs and would create alternate funding
for those drugs.  This will reduce the amount the plan pays for these drugs and will allow the member to
receive infusions at a low to no cost to them.  
 
Tria Health is designed to target members with high-risk chronic conditions and help them manage
those conditions. Tria offers one-on-one interaction with a pharmacist for members to review
medications and will work with the member to coordinate medications through their providers. Tria will
help patients achieve optimal health outcomes in managing maintenance drugs through targeting
outreach and advocating for the member. Tria has the ability to monitor members to assist them in
coordinating medications and ensuring that members are taking medications as prescribed.  Tria is also
able to help members manage costs of maintenance drugs which saves on costs for the member and the
plan.

ALL OPTIONS:
1. Payer Matrix Recommendation
 a. Approve the proposal of implementing Payer Matrix as an option for the County
 b. Deny the proposal of implementing Payer Matrix as an option for the County
 
2. Tria Health Recommendation
 a. Approve the proposal of implementing Tria Health as an option for the County
 b. Deny the proposal of implementing Tria Health as an option for the County

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approval of implementing Payer Matrix Infusion Patient Assistance Program
 



Approval of implementing Tria Health Disease Management Program

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The recommendations for Payer Matrix and Tria Health are intended to reduce claims costs paid by the
Reno County Health Plan and to help with out-of-pocket expenses by the member of the Reno County
Health Plan.



CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY: This presentation and the information contained herein is confidential and proprietary information of USI Insurance Services, LLC ("USI"). Recipient agrees not to copy, reproduce or distribute this document, in 

whole or in part, without the prior written consent of USI. Estimates are illustrative given data limitation, may not be cumulative and are subject to change based on carrier underwriting.   © 2014-2020 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved. 

A
p

ri
l
2

6
, 
2

0
2

2 2021-2022 PLAN YEAR PEPM COST ANALYSIS & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
STRATEGY RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2022-2023 

RENO COUNTY

Rick Beins  
www.usi.com



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  2
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

2021 Plan Year PEPM Cost Analysis 

The move from BCBSKS to BML/USI is producing significant financial savings 

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

2020 Plan Year (10/01/20 - 9/30/21) vs. Est. 2021 Plan Year w/ BCBS w/o USI vs. 2021 Plan Year YTD w/ BML & USI ( Thru 2/28/22)

2020 BCBS 2021 BCBS w/o USI 2021 BML with USI 2021 Difference with USI 2021 Monthly $ Difference with USI

Admin Fees (Med./Rx & Den.) $86.45 $92.91 $43.32 $49.59 $15,977.88

Stop Loss Premium $162.73 $170.33 $130.82 $39.51 $12,728.73

Maximum Claims $1,109.89 $1,153.61 $939.09 $214.52 $69,119.14

Total $1,359.07 $1,416.85 $1,113.23 $303.62 $97,825.75

Actual Net Claims $890.20 $995.60 $876.18 $119.42 $38,477.00

Est. Budget $1,232.65 $1,281.96 $1,128.01 $153.94 $49,600.94

Avg. Enrolled EE's 330.67 328 322.20

2020 BCBS 2021 BCBS w/o USI 2021 Delta Dental with USI 2021 Difference with USI 2021 Monthly $ Difference with USI

Expected Claims $58.74 $62.85 $62.77 $0.08 $29.25

Actual Claims $59.13 $63.26 $48.52 $14.74 $5,425.15

Est. Budget $75.39 $78.41 $74.88 $3.53 $1,297.42

Avg. Enrolled EE's 371 371 368

Numbers Above Do Not Include:

Rx Drug Rebates

Claims Run-Out Estimate

Medical & Rx Only

Dental Only

Reno County Per Employee Per Month Cost Analysis (PEPM)



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  3
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Infusion Drug Patient Assistance Program 

Move these infused Rx’s off the health plan and eliminate member OOP

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  4
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Tria Health…Targeted Disease Management

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

A three-step approach to targeted disease management



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  5
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Tria Health..SmartRx Software & Platform

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

Proactive outreach to members with chronic diseases & taking 4 or more Rx’s



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  6
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Tria Health..The Member Journey

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

A clear path to member engagement, better outcomes & lower claims costs 



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  7
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Tria Health Member Risk Analysis

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

194 health plan members identified for engagement with Tria Health 

Date of Analysis: 2/10/2022

Average Number of Employees: 350

Average Number of Plan Members: 810

Total Number of Members with a Script: 519 (64% of members)

Members Identified for Pharmacy Advocate 

Program:
194  (37% of members with 

script)

Identified Members By # of Conditions

# of 

Conditio

ns

# of Identified 

Plan Members

# of Identified 

Members w/ 

Diabetes

Average 

Yearly 

Spend

Est. Net Yearly 
Spend for 
Identified 

Population

1 68 (35%) 5 (12%) $3,240 $220,320
2 62 (32%) 10 (23%) $5,160 $319,920
3 31 (16%) 12 (28%) $7,488 $232,128
4 21 (11%) 9 (21%) $10,860 $228,060
5+ 12 (6%) 7 (16%) $23,736 $284,832

Total 194 43 $1,285,260

2 or More Conditions: All Identified = 126 (65%) | Diabetes Only= 38 (88%)

All Identified Members by Age

Age 
Bracket

# of Members
Avg. # of 

Conditions

Under 20 9 1.11

20 - 39 31 1.78

40 – 54 64 2.33

55 – 65 74 2.68

Over 65 16 3.10



USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

USI Confidential & Proprietary – EB document -

Rick Beins  July 30, 2019 : 15:41:16

|  8
© 2014 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved.

Confidential & Proprietary – EB One Pager

Tria Health ROI/Savings Analysis

© 2014-2019 USI Insurance Services. All rights reserved

Tri Healh’s first year average book of business engagement level is 25%



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.B

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Helen Foster

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Compensation Policy

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
In 2021, Phil Hayes with The Arnold Group was hired to complete a wage study.  In his findings that
were presented to the Board, he made several recommendations.  This policy outlines those
recommended changes to include consistent procedures for addressing wages and introducing the Pay
For Performance Model for the new evaluations going forward.  Within this policy, it outlines
maintenance of the pay scale system adopted in January of 2022 and put into place for Reno County in
February of 2022. This policy will address the pay structures and procedures for Elected, Non-Elected
and Appointed personnel for future wage increases and status and/or position changes.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approval of policy as presented
 
Recommendation or modification of policy

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve Compensation Policy as presented

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
Budgetary - Personnel Costs



1 

 

 

 

SUBJECT:  Compensation Policy 

 

 POLICY EFFECTICE DATE: May 1, 2022 
               
 
 
 

 PAGES: 6 

  

 

RELATED POLICIES: 
Performance Review Policy 

    

DEPARTMENTS PRIMARILY RESPONSIBLE:  All Departments 
 

   

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF RENO COUNTY, KANSAS: 

BOARD CHAIRMAN: 
     

 
CHAIRPERSON'S NAME (DATE)    

BOARD MEMBER 
     

 MEMBER'S NAME (DATE)    

BOARD MEMBER 
     

 
MEMBER'S NAME (DATE)    

 

Wage and Salary Administration 

Policy 
To attract and retain qualified employees to fill openings at all levels, it is Reno County’s policy to 
maintain fair and competitive salary ranges consistent with the economic requirements of the 
organization, and commensurate with those of the community in which Reno County operates. 

 

Objectives 
1. To obtain the highest possible degree of employee performance, morale, and loyalty 

through fair and equitable salary administration. 
2. To ensure internal equity and consistency within and between all departments and 

divisions of the organization. 
3. To ensure external competitiveness by developing and maintaining compensation levels 

reflective of current market rates of pay. 
4. To provide an effective means of controlling payroll costs and salary expenditures. 
5. To provide recognition and reward for differences in individual ability and performance. 
6. To provide uniform methods for establishing and applying salary rates, and to facilitate the 

employment, classification, and promotion of personnel. 

 

Methodology and Procedures 
Reno County uses an organized and systematic method of classifying jobs and administering 
wage and salaries to ensure that pay levels are competitive and internally equitable. 

1. Job Analysis 
Job analysis is a systematic process of determining the tasks that constitute a particular job 
and the skills and knowledge required to perform it. The result of job analysis is a job 
description, which is a factual description of the job’s essential and nonessential functions 
and the qualifications necessary to perform the job. All jobs are analyzed so that an accurate 
job description may be produced. 



2 

 

For newly created jobs or jobs that have undergone a significant amount of change, the 
manager and employee will work with the Human Resources Department to complete a job 
analysis questionnaire. The Human Resources Department develops the job description by 
relying on the questionnaire data and interviewing the manager and incumbent. The resulting 
job description must be reviewed and approved by Human Resources. At this same time, the 
Human Resources will complete an FLSA Exempt Status Survey to determine if the job 
should be classified as exempt or non-exempt as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA). 

Job descriptions are reviewed annually to identify changes in the job duties or requirements. 
Any changes to the job description will be reviewed with the employee. 
All employees are provided a copy of their job description when they are hired as well as 
if/when any subsequent changes are made to the job description. 

2. Job Evaluation 
Job evaluation is a means of determining how jobs should be ranked on the basis of the 
training required, the complexity of the work involved, and the responsibility the employee 
must bear for the results of the work. 

The County has adopted job evaluation procedures that use job-content information and data 
from relevant labor markets to establish a ranking for each job. Ranking for each job is 
determined by establishing a point value for compensable job factors. By calculating the total 
point value, the County can compare the relative value of jobs with different types of duties 
and responsibilities. Jobs with similar levels of responsibility and requiring similar levels of 
knowledge, skill, and ability have similar point values. Ranges of point values are associated 
with salary grades. 

3. Salary Structure 
A salary structure is a system of pay grades and ranges. Point values derived from the job 
evaluation process are associated with particular pay grades. Each grade level includes a 
range with a specified minimum wage amount, midpoint, and maximum wage amount. The 
salary structure is reviewed biennially and adjusted as needed based on the results of the 
review. The review will be based on market data for benchmarked positions.   

For job grades 10-15, the minimum is 22.50% below the midpoint and the maximum is 22.50 
% above the midpoint, with a 7.00% progression between the midpoints of the salary grades. 
For job grades 30-35, the minimum is 22.50% below the midpoint and the maximum is 
22.50% above the midpoint, with a 15.00% progression between the midpoints of the salary 
grades. For job grades 40-42, the minimum is 22.50% below the midpoint and the maximum 
is 22.50% above the midpoint, with a 10.00% progression between the midpoints of the 
salary grades. 

Factors generally to be considered in setting pay levels for a position include knowledge, 
skills, abilities required for the position, pay levels in the community, working conditions, 
special licenses required, scope of responsibility, management responsibility, and budget 
responsibility. Additionally, the following positions are Human Resource recommended and 
Board approved Specific “S” designated positions: 

1. Public Works 
a. Equipment Operator III’s 

2. Sheriff’s Office 
a. All non-administrative positions 

3. Emergency Management 
a. All non-administrative positions 

Factors generally to be considered in setting the pay for a particular employee include 
experience, performance, education, licenses, working conditions, tenure, scope of 



3 

 

responsibility, management responsibilities, and budget responsibilities. Human Resources 
shall be informed and involved in all employment offers.  Additionally, Human Resources is 
responsible for reviewing and authorizing starting compensation levels for all new hires 
placed above the job grade minimum. 
 
Employee pay rates placed near the minimum typically reflect employees new to the job or 
who meet minimum qualifications, but might not have preferred qualifications. Employee pay 
rates near the middle of the range usually reflect employees who have mastered the basic 
intent of the job and are performing the duties of the job at a satisfactory level. 
Employee pay rates near the maximum indicate highly experienced employees who perform 
their job duties at a consistently high performance level. 

4. Job Classification 
Job classification is the result of the three previous steps. It simply means properly matching 
each employee to the appropriate job description and grade level.   

The hiring rate should not be less than the minimum rate for the position and properly aligned 
with the applicant’s verifiable and transferable qualifications and experience generally 
required for the position. Exceptions require approval by Human Resources/County 
Administrator. 

 

Performance Evaluations and Pay for Performance 
The County believes that the performance evaluation is a valuable tool for both managers and 
employees. The County also believes that an employee’s compensation should be related to this 
evaluation in support of the concept of pay for performance. Periodically, no less than on an annual 
basis, the employee’s manager will complete a performance evaluation of the employee’s 
performance. The purpose of this evaluation is to recognize the employee’s performance and 
identify areas for professional and personal development. Salary/pay increases are not necessarily 
processed in conjunction with performance evaluations, nor are salary increases automatic. 

Pay for performance increases may be granted once each year unless extraordinary circumstances 
indicate an additional raise is merited. Human Resources/County Administrator must approve all 
increases.  Employees at the maximum pay in the pay scale for their job grade will receive lump-
sum merit increases until successive salary structure adjustments bring the employee's salary in line 
with the range maximum.  Lump sum payments will be dispersed in bi-weekly pay for performance 
increase installments rather than as a change in base pay rate. 

In administering this policy, it should be remembered that salary increases are earned and not 
automatic, nor are they entitlements. The employee's attitude and performance on the job should 
always be the governing factors in determining the amount and time interval in granting salary 
increases. 

Each succeeding pay increase within the range should be considered in the light of increasingly 
higher standards based on performance. The midpoint in the range is considered to be a fair and 
equitable rate of compensation for an employee who is fully qualified from the standpoint of training 
and experience, and whose demonstrated performance on the job over a period of time is entirely 
satisfactory in all respects. Higher salary ranges should be reflective for an employee who has 
consistently demonstrated above-average performance on the job over a long period of time. 

Performance evaluation ratings and supporting examples are an integral part of the County’s 
compensation philosophy influencing pay for performance increases. Performance evaluations use 
job descriptions, performance standards, performance expectation notices, and work/performance 
logs to determine if employees are meeting the County’s expectations. Pay for performance 



4 

 

increases are not limited to a specific percentage based on achieving a certain rating, rather the 
County’s pay for performance policy increases employee wages/salaries based on comparative 
performance and achievement.  Pay for Performance allows for higher performers to earn a higher 
percentage and lower performers to receive a lesser percentage. 

 

Annual Increases and Pay Scale Maintenance 
Except in periods of economic difficulties, Reno County generally provides annual Pay for 
Performance increases and provides for pay scale maintenance adjustments.  As a component of 
the budget process, the County Administrator will recommend a total salary budget to the Board for 
approval. 

1. All Employees: 
a. Annual COLA increases, if authorized, will be effective on the first pay date of each 

New Year. 
i. Recommendation:  The 3 year average CPI; no less than 1.00%. 

1. Pay Scale Adjustment and Employee COLA Increases will be applied 
annually to the first pay date of each New Year. 

2. Non-Elected Employees – Excluding Department Heads: 
a. Annual Pay for Performance increases, if authorized, will be effective on the second 

pay date of April each year. 
i. Recommendation: No less than 2.00% of Department Wages, less Department 

Head’s wages 
1. Pay for performance increases will vary according to each employee’s 

overall performance evaluation ranking and the Pay for Performance 
budgeted amount.   

2. Pay for Performance allows for higher performers to earn a higher 
percentage and lower performers to receive a lesser percentage. 

3. To be eligible for a Pay for Performance increase, an employee must be 
employed with at least 90 days of continuous service before the 
evaluation cycle end date.  New employees and employees with a 
position change of less than 15 months of continuous service, will 
receive a prorated Pay for Performance increase which will be 
calculated as the full Pay for Performance increase less a 90 day pro-
rated reduction. 

3. Non-Elected Department Heads: 
a. Annual Pay for Performance increases, if authorized, will be effective on the second 

pay date of April each year. 
i. Recommendation:  No less than 2.00% of all Non-Elected Department Head 

Wages. 
1. Pay for performance increases will vary according to each employee’s 

overall performance evaluation ranking and the Pay for Performance 
budgeted amount. 

2. Pay for Performance allows for higher performers to earn a higher 
percentage and lower performers to receive a lesser percentage. 

3. To be eligible for a Pay for Performance increase, an employee must be 
employed with at least 90 days of continuous service before the 
evaluation cycle end date.  New employees and employees with a 
position change of less than 15 months of continuous service, will 
receive a prorated Pay for Performance increase which will be 
calculated as the full Pay for Performance increase less a 90 day pro-
rated reduction. 



5 

 

4. Elected Officials & Contracted Individuals: 
a. Any salary increase for elected officials and contracted individuals shall be planned, 

budgeted and approved by the Commission. Recommendation: would be no less 
than 2% of Elected Officials and Contracted Individuals annual wages. 

 

Pay Differentials 
Pay differentials are special, additional pay recognizing unusual competencies, circumstances, or 
working conditions applying to some or all incumbents in select classes.  The following pay 
differentials are offered by the County: 

4. Public Works 
a. $2.00 hourly:  Crane Certification 

5. Sheriff’s Office 
a. $1.00 hourly:  Night Shift 

6. Youth Services 
a. $1.00 hourly:  2nd and 3rd Shift 

 

 

Promotions 
Promotion is the advancement from a position in one pay grade to another in a higher pay grade. 
When promoted, a fully qualified employee should receive the minimum salary for the new position. 
However, the new salary should be as much above the minimum salary as is necessary to provide 
a reasonable promotional increase. Normally, promotional increases should not be less than 5.00% 
and not more than 10.00% of the employee's current pay rate. Where unusually large promotions 
are involved, with an increase in excess of 15.00% percent will require prior approval of the Human 
Resources and County Administrator. 

1. Non-Elected Employees: 
a. Promotions and other pay adjustments for non-elected employees may be given at 

any time during the year with approval of Human Resources and County 
Administrator. 

2. Elected Officials: 
a. Promotions and other pay adjustments for elected officials may be given at any time 

during the year with approval of the Human Resources, County Administrator, and 
the Board. 

 

Reclassifications 
Reclassifications may be made when a major change in the position content occurs, or when the 
incumbent in the position relinquishes or assumes substantial responsibilities. When a position 
warrants reclassification, it will be re-described and re-evaluated and assigned to the proper position 
classification. If, as a result of re-evaluation, a position is changed to a higher or lower pay grade, 
the incumbent's salary should be adjusted to reflect the promotion or demotion, as the case may be.  

Market Adjustments 
When a position is upgraded because of a change in marketplace value, this is not a 
promotional increase. A market adjustment salary change will be made to bring the 
incumbent(s) up to the new grade minimum. 

Demotions 
Any change in assignment that results in movement to a position that is classified in a lower 
pay grade than that of the original position.  An employee who requests or accepts a 



6 

 

demotion should anticipate a decrease in pay. The new pay rate will be based on years of 
relevant work experience and county-wide internal equity considerations. Any decrease in 
salary will be reviewed by Human Resources to determine a fair and equitable pay 
adjustment. 

Transfers 
Transfers may be affected from one position to another within the same pay grade, or from 
a position in one department to a position with the same grade in another department. An 
employee will not be transferred to a new or revised position until the position has been 
described, evaluated, and approved. The new pay rate will be based on the position grade, 
the years of relevant work experience and county-wide internal equity considerations. An 
employee should not expect an increased adjustment in salary unless a promotion is 
involved.  
 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.C

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington and Harlen Depew

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Reno County Courthouse Space Renovation Architect Proposal

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:

In 2021, GLMV Architecture completed a space study for the Reno County Courthouse.  This study
involved discussions with all agencies and departments located in the courthouse, to determine what
their space needs consist of both currently and anticipated over the next 10-15 years.  Upon conclusion
of the study, conceptual drawings were created for each floor affected by the project, and a construction
cost estimate was developed.  New or revised spaces would be created for Information Technology,
County Commissioners/Administration,  Human Resources, Kansas Legal Services, District Attorney,
and District Court. 

 
The county commission approved the capital budget request last year to begin the project in 2022. 
There are funds in the capital improvement reserve fund and the general fund earmarked for this
project. 
 
The proposal under consideration today is for architectural services to take this project on to completion
including final design and review with occupants, construction drawings, bid documents, coordinating
the bid process, and project oversight while the work is being completed.

ALL OPTIONS:
Approve the agreement with GLMV.
Deny the agreement.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Approve the agreement with GLMV to provide architectural services to complete the courthouse space
renovation project.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The project, along with architectural costs are in the capital budget.  Funds with monies for this project
are in the capital improvement reserve fund and general fund.













Room Legend

ADMIN. ASSIST.

COMM. OFFICE

DELIBERATION

EXISTING

FILE STORAGE

NEW COMM. MEETING

OFFICE

EXISTING

DELIBERATION 
342 SF

OFFICE
167 SF ADMIN. ASSIST.

277 SF

EXIST. 
FINANCE 
OFFICE

NEW COMM. MEETING
890 SF

EXIST. WORK 
STATIONS OFFICE

EXIST. WORK 
STATIONS

EXIT. HR 
DEPT.

44 SEATS

EXIT. HR 
DEPT.

OFFICE
147 SF

OFFICE
165 SF

OFFICE
134 SF

CL

EXISTING

FILE STORAGE

FILE PATH: 3/24/2022 3:02:00 PMBIM 360://19139R21001_Reno Cnty Courthouse Space Utilization/19139R21001_A_RENOCO-CRTHS_SPACE-UTILIZ_V21.rvt

RENO CO COURTHOUSE - SPACE UTILIZATION 0 8' 16'4'1/8" = 1'-0"1
CONCEPT PLAN LEVEL 1 SPACE UTILIZATION PLAN

NORTH



7
2
"W

7
2
"W

168"W6

168"W 6

Room Legend

CONF.

NORTH MAZZ.

OFFICE

WALKWAY

393 SF

WALKWAY

2130 SF

NORTH
MAZZ.

303 SF

CONF.

IT LAB

118 SF

OFFICE

(4) IT STAFF

FILE PATH: 5/5/2021 11:34:30 AMBIM 360://19139R21001_Reno Cnty Courthouse Space Utilization/19139R21001_A_RENOCO-CRTHS_SPACE-UTILIZ_V21.rvt

RENO CO COURTHOUSE - SPACE UTILIZATION 0 8' 16'4'1/8" = 1'-0"2
CONCEPT PLAN 'A' LEVEL 2 SPACE UTILIZATION PLAN

NORTH



Room Legend

JURY RM EXPANSION

JURY RM
EXPANSION

FILE PATH: 3/24/2022 2:54:30 PMBIM 360://19139R21001_Reno Cnty Courthouse Space Utilization/19139R21001_A_RENOCO-CRTHS_SPACE-UTILIZ_V21.rvt

RENO CO COURTHOUSE - SPACE UTILIZATION 0 8' 16'4'1/8" = 1'-0"3
LEVEL 3 SPACE UTILIZATION PLAN

NORTH



Room Legend

ADD STAIR

EXISTING

LEGAL OFFICE

CASASTOR.

STOR.

MEN WOMEN

HALL

FILE

COURT

OFFICE MEETING

CL

CL

HALL

OFFICE

MEN

WOMEN

LEGAL
OFFICE

LEGAL
OFFICE

LEGAL
OFFICE

HALL

ADD STAIR 
TO LVL 5

UP

FILE PATH: 5/5/2021 11:34:37 AMBIM 360://19139R21001_Reno Cnty Courthouse Space Utilization/19139R21001_A_RENOCO-CRTHS_SPACE-UTILIZ_V21.rvt

RENO CO COURTHOUSE - SPACE UTILIZATION 0 8' 16'4'1/8" = 1'-0"4
CONCEPT PLAN 'C' LEVEL 4 SPACE UTILIZATION PLAN

NORTH



Room Legend

DA

DA FILE

ELEC

EXISTING

MEETING

NEW STAIR

PRINTING RM

EXISTING
EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

49 SF

ELEC

ORIG. 
CELLS  
(NEW 
STOR.)

DN

DN

MEN' WOMEN'

DA
155 SF MEETING

370 SF

DA FILE
165 SF

DA FILE
615 SF

OPTION B

DA
155 SF

DA
155 SF

N
E

W
 S

T
A

IR
 &

 C
O

R
R

.

PRINTING 
RM

88 SF

DA FILE
240 SF

DA FILE
155 SF

FILE PATH: 5/5/2021 11:34:39 AMBIM 360://19139R21001_Reno Cnty Courthouse Space Utilization/19139R21001_A_RENOCO-CRTHS_SPACE-UTILIZ_V21.rvt

RENO CO COURTHOUSE - SPACE UTILIZATION 0 8' 16'4'1/8" = 1'-0"5
LEVEL 5 SPACE UTILIZATION PLAN

NORTH



Project:

Location:

Owner:

4/11/2022

Description Cost

1st & 2nd Levels

Mezzanine Walkway Addition

New Walkway Struct Steel at Columns $6000 ea 5+2 columns 42,000$        

New Walkway Reinforced Concrete $110 / sf 305 sf 33,550$        

Finishes 11,000$        

New Walkway Frameless Handrails Clear Glass w/ Top Edge

$500 /linear ft 75 ft 37,500$        

Remodel Area $100 / sf 95 sf 9,500$          

133,550$      

IT Upgrades Conduits, trays, racks, cabling, etc. $12 3000 36,000$        

36,000$        

Commission Meeting & Mezz reflooring Material $/yd Prep & Labor $/yd Area sq yd

Commission Meeting $30 $25 110 6,050$          

First Floor Office Remodel $100 $80 50 9,000$          

Mezz $30 $25 250 13,750$        

28,800$        

Contingency 15% 29,753$        

228,103$      

Basement, 3rd, 4th, & 5th Levels

Basement Veterans' Room Upgrades

General Construction 15000 1 15,000$        

Third Floor Jury Room Renovation

General Construction 95 700 66,500$        

Fifth Floor Renovation

General Construction 95 2900 275,500$      

New Stair 22,000$        

Mechanical - Adding to Existing HVAC System

37 2900 107,300$      

Electrical 22 2900 63,800$        

550,100$      

Contingency 15% 82,515$        

632,615$      

Total Construction Cost

Mezz + Fifth Floor Renovation + reflooring 860,718$      

Non-Construction Cost

FF&E 575,000$      

Allowance for carpeting of other areas associated with remodeled spaces 60,000$        

Permitting, Review Fees, Other Expenses 2.0% 17,214$        

Professional fees 103,900$      

1,616,832$  

1,616,832$  

Three Stops Elevator Alternate 225,000$      

Reno Space Utilization

206 W 1st Ave, Hutchinson, KS 67501

Reno County

Total Construction Cost

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

Budget Total

Subtotal



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #8.D

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Moody, Communications Specialist

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Communications Yearly Update

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Yearly Communications Report



 
 
 

 
Communications Yearly Report 

April 26, 2022 
 

Main Objectives: 
 

• Improve perception of Reno County 
• Increase knowledge of Reno County Departments and Services 
• Increase Audience and Reach 

 
 
Main 2021 Initiatives: 
 

• Health Department COVID-19 and Wellness Communication  
o Vaccine rollout and education campaigns 

 
• Website re-design 

o Completed in October, continue to update and analyze 
 

• Departmental Spotlights 
o Sheriff’s Department 
o Reno County Commissioners 
o Emergency Management 
o Human Resources 
o Drug Court 
o Public Works 
o Department of Aging 
o Community Corrections 
o Clerk’s Office 
o Treasurer’s Office 
o Other Video Initiatives: Elections, Community Conversations, Commission Expansion, 

Service Awards, Vaccine Clinics, COVID Town Hall, Sheriff Trainings, Recruitment 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
Administration 

206 West First Ave. 
Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 

620-694-2929 
 



SOCIAL MEDIA DATA: 
 
Audiences (followers, subscribers) 
Facebook RN  2020: 2,224 Target: 2,500 End 2021: 2,837       Current: 3,426            Target: 4,000 
Facebook EM 2020: 10,462 Target: 11,000 End 2021: 11,063      Current: 11,174         Target: 11,500 
Twitter   2020: 758 Target: 800 End 2021: 796      Current: 836            Target: 900 
LinkedIn   2020: 8  Target: 80 End 2021: 34      Current: 44            Target: 80 
YouTube   2020: 124 Target: 150 End 2021: 189       Current: 217            Target: 250   

 
Facebook Reno County- 2021 DATA 

 
Facebook reach was up 93.4% for the year but declined in the last half of the year. Possible factors for decline 
include COVID fatigue and changing Facebook algorithms.  
 
 

 



Twitter Analytics 
Our followers continue to climb slowly but I would like to see more impressions and engagement.  

 
 January 1 –  
March 30 
Impressions 22.9K 
Engagement rate- 2.0%  
Link clicks- 129 
Retweets- 20 
Likes- 122 

April 1 –  
June 30 
Impressions 18.5K 
Engagement rate- 1.4%  
Link clicks- 42 
Retweets- 22 
Likes- 92 

July 1 –  
September 30 
Impressions 36.6K 
Engagement rate- 1.9%  
Link clicks- 111 
Retweets- 41 
Likes- 128 

October 1 –  
December 20 
Impressions 13.1K 
Engagement rate- 2.0% 
Link clicks- 119 
Retweets- 25 
Likes- 63 

 
 
Linked In 
Our followers are still low for this channel. I will focus more on this in 2022 for recruitment and 
business engagement. 

 

 
 

SOCIAL MEDIA CHANGES FOR 2022 
- Added Instagram Account 
- Added as contributor to Sheriff’s Office Facebook and Heal Reno County Facebook (Pathways 

Grant HDP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LOOKING AHEAD- 2022 Communications 
 
Main Initiatives: 
 

1. Branding 
• Promote new Mission/Vision/Values to improve internal culture and external trust and 

transparency. 
• Look at logo usage for possible updates as well as standardization of communication between all 

departments. 
 

2. Commission Expansion 
• Educate the community on role of Commissioner, new districts, and duties for potential 

candidates. 
• Promote the expansion and filing dates through a variety of methods. 

 
3. Department/Program Spotlights 

• Continue to highlight departments and employees and include more services. 
• Elections and the Community Health Assessments will be promoted heavily.  
• ARPA funding communication once it’s finalized. 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #9.A

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
2023-2027 CIP Presentation

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
The Capital Improvement Plan includes capital budget requests from any department that has a capital
expenditure request or planned expenditure for the 2023-2027 budget years.  The intent of the plan is to
see the capital needs for the next five years and try to balance the expenditures, as much as is practical.
 For the CIP, capital items are large equipment or projects that are generally $10,000 or more in cost and
are not part of ongoing operational costs. 
 
The CIP that is being presented has deviated from the original CIP Reno County used in the past that
was isolated to the Capital Improvement Plan fund (Resolution attached).  The CIP has been expanded
to reflect the large capital costs shown in various funds and departments that reflect additional capital
costs not associated with the CIP fund.
 
Capital items shown in the official CIP for the next budget year should match each department’s capital
(8000s) code amounts.  The items that will not match up are some 8000 codes in our financial system
that are for fund transfers or other miscellaneous items that are not actually capital costs.  During the
operating budget discussion, there may be some exceptions based on items less than $10,000 that have a
shelf life of five years are more.  There also may be items that are over $10,000, but not at the unit cost
level.  Some items that are purchased every year by a department that would meet the cost criteria are
paid out of commodities, such as gravel purchases or machinery and equipment repairs are included.  

ALL OPTIONS:
Discuss CIP and give direction for any requested changes.

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Review and discuss the CIP requests.

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
The CIP shows a plan for the next 5-years in capital expenditures.  Deferments from one year to the next
will increase the cost for that capital expenditure.  



 

 

 

2023 – 2027 

 

CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT 

PLAN 



 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

2023 – 2027 
 

Full List 

Program Summary and Levied Amount 

Aging/RCAT (Public Transportation) 

CIP  

Courthouse General 

Health 

Maintenance 

Public Works-Road & Bridge 

Sheriff 

Solid Waste 

Special Equipment  

Youth Services 



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Bus Stop Shelters $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $110,000.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Fixed Route $18,670.00 $22,266.00 $42,355.00 $22,266.00 $22,266.00 $22,266.00 $131,419.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Paid by Grant $185,000.00 $185,104.00 $206,886.00 $201,104.00 $201,104.00 $115,322.00 $909,520.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Paratransit $37,730.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,652.00 $108,256.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Transit Works $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,271.00 $19,271.00 $0.00 $38,542.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Vehicles-Minivan $0.00 $15,271.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,271.00 $30,542.00

CIP Maint Cthouse & RCCF Facility
Condition Assessment

$30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Automatic
Elevator Update

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Carpet Tiles
Stock

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Limestone
Façade Re-anchoring

$0.00 $700,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Network Re-
cabling

$0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse roof east
side/center section

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse roof west side
Replacement

$0.00 $98,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,000.00

CIP Maint EOC Generator
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

CIP Maint Health Carpet
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

CIP Maint Health Exterior
Tuckpointing

$25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Health Roof
Replacement

$110,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Health Rooftop (3) HVAC
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00

CIP Maint LEC Elevator
Modernization

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

4/8/2022 14:46



CIP Maint Maint Dept Split Unit
Replacement

$0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00

CIP Maint Maint Dept/Ext Ofc
Rework

$0.00 $45,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,000.00

CIP Maint Miscellaneous $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint PubWorks 8 Split HVAC
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,000.00

CIP Maint RCAT Carpet
Replacement

$0.00 $17,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,500.00

CIP Maint RCAT Paint Building $24,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Reserve: Large 2028
Expenditures

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $300,000.00 $450,000.00

CIP Maint ROD Architectural
Services

$0.00 $18,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,500.00

CIP Maint Transfer to Bond &
Interest

$359,875.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Backup
Generator Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs East Wing Roof
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Replace 12
Skylights

$0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Restroom
Imprvmnts

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

CIP PBC Capital Lease - Public
Works Building

$87,125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Courthouse General Courthous
e General

Courthouse
Improvements

$1,049,054.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

Health Health
Capital

Building & Equipment
Repairs/Maintenance

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $75,000.00

Health Health
Capital

EMR-Electronic Medical
Records System

$220,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Health Health
Capital

Security Camera System $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

Maint Maint UTV for snow removal $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00

Maint Maint Vehicle Purchase $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Maint Maint ZTR Mower & Misc.
Lawn Power Equipment

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

4/8/2022 14:46



Road & Bridge PubWorks Bridge: Culverts $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $25,000.00 $145,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Bridge: Material $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $350,000.00 $1,690,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Equipment $550,000.00 $591,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $2,791,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Road:  Asphalt Material-
Apprx 32 Rd Miles TBD

$2,100,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $12,000,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Transfer of Funds $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $1,500,000.00

Sheriff RCCF Vehicle Auto Repairs
(Install)

$0.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,600.00

Sheriff RCCF Vehicle Equipping $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Firing Range
Renovations

$15,000.00 $75,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $135,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Guns $36,480.00 $10,682.00 $22,000.01 $22,000.01 $22,000.01 $22,000.10 $98,682.13

Sheriff Sheriff Vehicle Auto Repairs
(Install)

$0.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $40,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Vehicle Equipping $0.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $140,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Buildings & Fixed
Equipment

$100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Cell 8 $1,600,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Compactor Rebuild $0.00 $400,000.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $850,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Dozer Rebuild $0.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $900,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Dozer Undercarriage $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Dozers $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Loaders $300,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $1,050,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Motor Graders $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 $450,000.00 $850,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Office Equipment/GPS
Equipment

$0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Pickups $60,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $130,000.00

4/8/2022 14:46



Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Scale Relocation (Bond
payment)

$251,950.00 $250,950.00 $249,750.00 $253,350.00 $251,550.00 $249,550.00 $1,255,150.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Scraper Rebuilds $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Scrapers $0.00 $1,100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,100,000.00

Solid Waste Solid
Waste

Transfer of Funds $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Appraiser

$25,000.00 $26,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $26,000.00 $127,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Court Services

$0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Dist. Atty

$26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Em. Mgmt

$0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $90,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Health

$20,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $30,000.00 $142,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Maintenance

$0.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO

$176,000.00 $143,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $1,007,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO-RCCF

$38,600.00 $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00

Special Equipment Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Yth Srvcs

$0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Citrix Licensing $52,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Firewalls $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Firewalls & Switches $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,800.00

Special Equipment Info Tech LEC - Tyler New World $174,000.00 $182,900.00 $182,900.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $913,900.00

Special Equipment Info Tech LEC - Tyler New World -
Hutch Reimb

-$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$670,982.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Microsoft Office $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $75,000.00 $395,000.00

Special Equipment Info Tech San Replacement $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $100,000.00

Special Equipment Info Tech San Replacement - SO $0.00 $60,000.00 $36,363.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,363.00

4/8/2022 14:46



Special Equipment Info Tech Switch/Router $0.00 $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Tablets for Maintenance $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Thin Laptops $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,658.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Thin Workstations $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,260.00

Special Equipment Info Tech VM Ware Servers $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $62,500.00

Special Equipment Info Tech Windows 10 IOT
Enterprise

$9,519.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Youth Services Detention Security Camera System $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Youth Services Food Kitchen Steam Kettles $13,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Youth Services Shelter Shelter Furniture
Replacements

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

Youth Services Shelter Shelter Window
Replacements

$0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $7,228,662.00 $6,421,883.00 $3,169,464.01 $3,265,142.01 $3,671,342.01 $2,477,561.10 $19,005,392.13
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

4/8/2022 14:46



Program 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum of 2023-2027
Aging/Public Transportation 263,400.00$ 266,292.00$ 292,892.00$ 286,292.00$ 286,292.00$ 196,511.00$ 1,328,279.00$
CIP 796,000.00$ 957,000.00$ 89,000.00$ 259,000.00$ 550,000.00$ 325,000.00$ 2,180,000.00$
Courthouse General 1,049,054.00$ 1,000,000.00$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,000,000.00$
Health 235,000.00$ 25,000.00$ 15,000.00$ 15,000.00$ 15,000.00$ 15,000.00$ 85,000.00$
Maint 30,000.00$ -$ 6,500.00$ 10,000.00$ -$ -$ 16,500.00$
Road & Bridge 850,000.00$ 891,000.00$ 850,000.00$ 850,000.00$ 850,000.00$ 850,000.00$ 4,291,000.00$
Sheriff 51,480.00$ 85,682.00$ 37,000.01$ 37,000.01$ 37,000.01$ 37,000.10$ 233,682.13$
Solid Waste 3,461,950.00$ 2,700,950.00$ 1,414,750.00$ 1,453,350.00$ 1,616,550.00$ 699,550.00$ 7,885,150.00$
Special Equipment 458,578.00$ 495,959.00$ 439,322.00$ 329,500.00$ 316,500.00$ 354,500.00$ 1,935,781.00$
Youth Services 33,200.00$ -$ 25,000.00$ 25,000.00$ -$ -$ 50,000.00$
Grand Total 7,228,662.00$ 6,421,883.00$ 3,169,464.01$ 3,265,142.01$ 3,671,342.01$ 2,477,561.10$ 19,005,392.13$

Reno County CIP 2023 - 2027 Summary

4/8/2022



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Bus Stop Shelters $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $22,000.00 $110,000.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Fixed Route $18,670.00 $22,266.00 $42,355.00 $22,266.00 $22,266.00 $22,266.00 $131,419.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Paid by Grant $185,000.00 $185,104.00 $206,886.00 $201,104.00 $201,104.00 $115,322.00 $909,520.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Paratransit $37,730.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,651.00 $21,652.00 $108,256.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Buses-Transit Works $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,271.00 $19,271.00 $0.00 $38,542.00

Aging/Public
Transportation

RCAT Vehicles-Minivan $0.00 $15,271.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,271.00 $30,542.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $263,400.00 $266,292.00 $292,892.00 $286,292.00 $286,292.00 $196,511.00 $1,328,279.00

3/9/2022 12:20



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Public Transportation

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:

(1) Rcat Bus Shelter

Year 2023

Materials & Labor $ 3,700.00

Concrete* $ 1,024.50

Graphics

Small Rcat Logo (2) $ 78.60

Large Logo Rcat (2-3) $ 122.52

County Logo $ -

Graphics Installation $ 135.00

Total $ 5,060.62

*Concrete costs vary from site to site depending on the terrain and the amount of concrete required.

Estimated total cost for 4 shelters with $1,750 variance for concrete = $22,000 (rounded).

Funding Source: County Match

Amount: $22,000

Full G/L Account Code: 002-27-8100-007

Alternatives: Build less shelters or defer building the shelters for another year.



 
 
 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 
 

 
 
 
 

Department:  Public Transportation 
 

 

Description & Justification  for this item and this budget year: 

Replace Rcat #14 a 2019 Ford ElDorado Areotech Cutaway with lift 

This bus has 112,164 (as of 1/31/2022) and is used exclusively for Fixed Route service. It is 

subjected to “stop and go” street traffic at all times while being driven. The bus runs on concrete, 

asphalt, old brick, and some sand/gravel streets, it has high mileage as well as wear and tear 

associated maintenance costs. This vehicle is projected to accrue 40,000 to 50,000 miles before 

replacement in December of 2023. Replacement date is tentative. 
 

 

Funding Source: 80% Federal Grant Award for Capital purchase and 20% Local Match from 
Elderly Mill Levy & General Fund 

 

 

Amount: $87,228 (80%/20% cost share =$ 69,782 & $17,445 respectively. Total amount of 

county cost = $22,266 which included $2,178 in upfitting charges and projected cost increase of 
$2,643. Cost is based on the information currently available but may change due to the uncertainty in the vehicle manufacturing 

industry. 
 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  20% County Match = 002-27-8200 000 Vehicles, 80% Grant Match = 
002-27-8201 000 

 

 

Alternatives:  Continue to use this vehicle for another year and hope to rely on KDOT to 

approve repair costs when incurred. 



 
 
 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 
 

 
 
 
 

Department:  Public Transportation 
 

 

Description & Justification  for this item and this budget year: 

Replace Rcat #10 a 2016 Ford Starcraft Cutaway with lift. 

This bus has 100,415 miles (as of 1/31/2022) and is used exclusively for Paratransit service. It 

has high mileage as well as wear and tear associated maintenance costs. This vehicle is projected 

to accrue 20,000 to 30,000 miles before replacement in December of 2023. Replacement date is 

tentative. 
 

 

Funding Source: 80% Federal Grant Award for Capital purchase and 20% Local Match from 
Elderly Mill Levy & General Fund 

 

 

Amount: $84,152 (80%/20% cost share =$ 67,322 & $16,830 respectively). Total amount of 

county cost = $21,652 which includes $2,178 in upfitting charges and a projected cost increase 

of $2,643. Cost is based on the information currently available but may change due to the uncertainty in the vehicle manufacturing 

industry. 
 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  20% County Match = 002-27-8200 000 Vehicles, 80% Grant Match = 
002-27-8201 000 

 

 

Alternatives:  Continue to use this vehicle for another year and hope to rely on KDOT to 

approve repair costs when incurred. 



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Public Transportation

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:

Replace Rcat #21 a 2015 Ford Caravan with ramp.

This bus has 95,701 (as of 1/31/2022) and is used as Specialized Transportation in covering the
rural parts of the county and Paratransit service in Hutchinson and South Hutchinson. The van has
high mileage as well as wear and tear associated maintenance costs. This vehicle is projected to
accrue 10,000 to 15,000 miles before replacement in December 2023. Replacement date is tentative.

Funding Source: 80% Federal Grant Award for Capital purchase and 20% Local Match from
Elderly Mill Levy & General Fund

Amount: $60,000 (80%/20% cost share =$ 48,000 & $12,000 respectively – total amount of
county cost = $15,271 which includes $625 in upfitting charges and projected cost increase of
$2,643. Cost is based on the information currently available but may change due to the uncertainty in the vehicle manufacturing

industry.

Full G/L Account Code: 20% County Match = 002-27-8200 000 Vehicles, 80% Grant Match =
002-27-8201 000

Alternatives: Continue to use this vehicle for another year and hope to rely on KDOT to
approve repair costs when incurred.



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

CIP Maint Cthouse & RCCF Facility
Condition Assessment

$30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Automatic
Elevator Update

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Carpet Tiles
Stock

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Limestone
Façade Re-anchoring

$0.00 $700,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $700,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse Network Re-
cabling

$0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse roof east
side/center section

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

CIP Maint Cthouse roof west side
Replacement

$0.00 $98,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98,000.00

CIP Maint EOC Generator
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

CIP Maint Health Carpet
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

CIP Maint Health Exterior
Tuckpointing

$25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Health Roof
Replacement

$110,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Health Rooftop (3) HVAC
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00

CIP Maint LEC Elevator
Modernization

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

CIP Maint Maint Dept Split Unit
Replacement

$0.00 $8,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00

CIP Maint Maint Dept/Ext Ofc
Rework

$0.00 $45,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,000.00

3/9/2022 12:24



CIP Maint Miscellaneous $150,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint PubWorks 8 Split HVAC
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,000.00

CIP Maint RCAT Carpet
Replacement

$0.00 $17,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,500.00

CIP Maint RCAT Paint Building $24,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Reserve: Large 2028
Expenditures

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 $300,000.00 $450,000.00

CIP Maint ROD Architectural
Services

$0.00 $18,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,500.00

CIP Maint Transfer to Bond &
Interest

$359,875.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Backup
Generator Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs East Wing Roof
Replacement

$0.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $65,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Replace 12
Skylights

$0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00

CIP Maint Yth Srvcs Restroom
Imprvmnts

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

CIP PBC Capital Lease - Public
Works Building

$87,125.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $796,000.00 $957,000.00 $89,000.00 $259,000.00 $550,000.00 $325,000.00 $2,180,000.00

3/9/2022 12:24



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   Purchase new stock of carpet 

tile for use in various locations in the courthouse and other county offices.   

 

Having carpet tiles in stock gives us the option of replacing carpet in individual offices with 

short notice when a room becomes vacant. Buying in larger quantities allows us to get better 

pricing than with a small order. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund 

 

Amount:  $10,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

Alternatives:   1.  Purchase smaller quantities on an as needed basis. 

   2.  Purchase rolled carpet and have it installed by flooring contractors. 

 

The downside to these alternatives is higher cost per square yard, and more disruption to staff, 

as occupied rooms need to be emptied out for a several days while old carpet is removed, and 

new carpet is installed. 

 

Where it makes sense to do so, we suggest replacing carpet in high traffic hallways with 

ceramic, porcelain, or LVT tile.  This material should last for decades and would make it more 

practical to replace carpet in adjacent rooms on an as needed basis, without the need to replace 

carpet in entire buildings all at one time. 

  
    

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Stabilize the Limestone Façade on 

the Exterior of the Courthouse. 

 

Late during the process of completing repairs to the courthouse dome from the 2019 

earthquake, it was discovered that many of the steel ties that secure the exterior limestone façade 

to the courthouse structure have deteriorated over time.  This creates a condition where these 

stone slabs are being held in place primarily by gravity.  It is recommended that new mechanical 

anchors be installed to stabilize these stones and minimize the chance of future movement. 

 

If this is not completed, and another earthquake, tornado, or micro-burst,  were to occur, it 

could result in a “domino effect”, where entire sections of stone could separate and fall from the 

building.  Additionally, even without such extreme weather events, without an adequate 

anchoring system, these stones are likely to shift enough over time to cause damage to mortar 

joints.  This in turn will encourage additional water infiltration which leads to additional damage. 

 

At the time of this request, insurance is still reviewing the facts in our structural engineer’s report 

to determine if it can be a covered expense.  However, we are submitting a request for funding 

this project in the event coverage is denied. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Project Fund 

 

Amount:  $700,000.00 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   

 

1. Accept the change order in the amount of $698,401.20 while the restoration                                           

contractor is still on site, and complete the work in 2022. 

2. Choose not to make the repair at all and address any collateral problems if and when they 

occur. 

3. Put this project out to bid in a future year. 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   This project will replace our 

existing category 5 cabling in the Courthouse with new category 6 cable to all network connected 

devices and will centralize switch gear to one server room location.  Approximately 350 devices. 

 

Completing this project in conjunction with the larger courthouse remodel would minimize 

disruption to building occupants. 

 

Running separate cabling to phones and computers will improve the performance of the devices 

going forward, 

 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Project Fund 

 

Amount:  $60,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   1.  Continue to run our network on cat 5 cable. 

   2.  Defer the project to a later year. 

 

  

    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   20-year replacement of roof 

over the District Attorney's office.  In addition to the age of the  roof, it has taken a beating 

during the earthquake repair project. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund 

 

Amount:  $98,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   

1. Defer this to 2024 or 2025 and replace additional roof sections at the same time.  This 

could result in more frustration in the District Attorney’s office, while new leaks are being 

identified and patched, but could result in some savings by replacing multiple sections at 

one time. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   Replace furnace / AC unit at 

the Maintenance office building.  Old unit approximately 25 years old. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund 

 

Amount:  $8,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

Alternatives:  

1. Defer this purchase to 2024.  

2. Wait to replace it until it fails.   
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   Rework Extension Office / 

Maintenance driveway to address deteriorating asphalt. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund 

 

Amount:  $45,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   

 

1. Defer to a future year. 

2. Remove asphalt entirely and replaced with crushed limestone.  This alternative would be 

less costly but is a less desirable surface for snow removal, weed control, and general 

cleanliness. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:   Replace carpet in high traffic 

areas in the Rcat building.  (15 years old)   

 

We recommend replacing carpet in some high traffic hallways and common spaces with 

ceramic or porcelain tile.  This will last a lot longer than carpet and will make it more 

reasonable to replace carpet in adjoining rooms on an as needed basis in the future. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund 

 

Amount:  $17,500 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   

1. Defer this purchase to 2024. 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:    

 

The Registrar of Deeds requests the Courthouse Annex be remodeled to provide more space 

for the Treasurer, and a fully enclosed space for the ROD. 

 

This request is for architectural services to design the building modifications and related 

mechanical systems, and to generate construction and bid documents. 

 

Funding Source:  Capital Improvement Project Fund 

 

Amount:  $18,500 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  098-8050-000 

 

Alternatives:   1.  Collaborate with the Treasure to utilize the space as it is. 

   2.  Defer the design work to a future year. 

 

  

    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Courthouse
General

Courthouse
General

Courthouse
Improvements

$1,049,054.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $1,049,054.00 $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

3/9/2022 9:10



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Courthouse General 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  2023  

 

The County Commission approved a courthouse space study/renovation project with GLMV 

Architecture last year and is expected to see final documents in 2022 prior to sending the project 

out to bid.  The intent of the space renovation is to analyze how space could better be used for 

the following departments. 

• County Commission 

• County Administration 

• Information Technology 

• District Attorney 

• District Courts 

The study has allowed for courthouse drawings and cost estimates to be completed.  This project 

does not include other items in the courthouse that will need to be addressed in future years, such 

as electrical wiring, plumbing, roofing sections, sewer lines, fire alarm system and the 

heating/cooling system.  This request is for the possible addition of items listed above and for a 

contingency of unknown costs that may be the result of other ongoing courthouse renovations. 

 

The project has funding in the 2022 Courthouse General Fund, along with money held in the 

CIP Reserve fund.   

 

Funding Source:  General Fund – Courthouse General Capital  

 

Amount:  $1,000,000 

 

Account Code:  001-09-8054-010 

 

Alternatives:   

1. Rely solely on reserve funds. 
 

 

 

 

 



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Health Health
Capital

Building & Equipment
Repairs/Maintenance

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $75,000.00

Health Health
Capital

EMR-Electronic Medical
Records System

$220,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Health Health
Capital

Security Camera System $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $235,000.00 $25,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $85,000.00

3/14/2022 14:12



 
 
 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 
 

 
 
 
 

Department:  Health Department 
 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  This request is for architectural 

and structural engineering services for current and/or future health department building 

assessment and/or evaluation.   

 
Funding Source:  Health Fund Capital Account 

 

 

Amount: 15,000.00 
 
Full G/L Account Code:  086-8050-000 

 

 

Alternatives:   1. Collaborate with the Maintenance department to utilize our current space.  

   2. Defer the design work to a future year.  



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Health Department

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:
Purchase and install a camera security system for the Health Department Building and outside
areas. The current building has two public entrances, two employee entrances and four
additional doors for emergency exits. The hallways in the buildings are interconnected and have
no security doors to separate access between public areas and employees’ areas.
Although the current attitude and anger surrounding Covid has decreased slightly and the threats
and potential riots that surrounded the public concerns about racial and cultural unrest have also
decreased at this time: what has developed is an awareness of the vulnerability of the employees
within the Health Department building and the lack of potential safety and security that can
occur within the walls of the department. The purchase and install of a security camera system
can help to create a barrier to situations that might arise, while at the same time provide a sense
of safety for our employees because of the knowledge that there will be access to what potentially
occurred.

Funding Source: Health Fund Capital Account

Amount: 10,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 086-8050-000

Alternatives: Do nothing. Continue as it is. Live with the potential consequences.



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Maint Maint UTV for snow removal $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00

Maint Maint Vehicle Purchase $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Maint Maint ZTR Mower & Misc.
Lawn Power Equipment

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $30,000.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,500.00

4/8/2022 14:37



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Road & Bridge PubWorks Bridge: Culverts $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $25,000.00 $145,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Bridge: Material $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $335,000.00 $350,000.00 $1,690,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Equipment $550,000.00 $591,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $550,000.00 $2,791,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Road:  Asphalt Material-
Apprx 32 Rd Miles TBD

$2,100,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $2,400,000.00 $12,000,000.00

Road & Bridge PubWorks Transfer of Funds $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $1,500,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $850,000.00 $891,000.00 $850,000.00 $850,000.00 $850,000.00 $850,000.00 $4,291,000.00
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

3/9/2022 8:11



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
007-00-7300-005











Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Sheriff RCCF Vehicle Auto Repairs
(Install)

$0.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,600.00

Sheriff RCCF Vehicle Equipping $0.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Firing Range
Renovations

$15,000.00 $75,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $135,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Guns $36,480.00 $10,682.00 $22,000.01 $22,000.01 $22,000.01 $22,000.10 $98,682.13

Sheriff Sheriff Vehicle Auto Repairs
(Install)

$0.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $40,000.00

Sheriff Sheriff Vehicle Equipping $0.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $140,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $51,480.00 $85,682.00 $37,000.01 $37,000.01 $37,000.01 $37,000.10 $233,682.13
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

3/16/2022 10:40



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Sheriff’s Office

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Construction of initial outside
shell of a 40’ x 60’ enclosed building with concrete floor and plumbing roughed-in.

Funding Source: General Fund

Amount: $75,000.00

Account Code: 06-8100-006

Alternatives: Completely fund an amount not to exceed $220,000.00 to completely finish a
40’ x 60’ enclosed training building. Costs continue to rise every year and trying to partially fund
a training facility building over several years is not cost effective.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Sheriff’s Office

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Purchase of (1) Sig M400 Entry
Rifle & equipment and (1) Seekins Precision Sniper Rifle & equipment for the Sheriff's Office
Special Response Team. Cost for (1) entry rifle and accessories is $2,192. Cost for (1) sniper
rifle and accessories is $8,490. Total combined cost for these rifles is $10,682.00.

Funding Source: General Fund

Amount: $10,682.00

Account Code: 06-8350-003

Alternatives: This purchase was already deferred back a year from 2022 due to budget
constraints.



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Buildings & Fixed Equipment $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Cell 8 $1,600,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Compactor Rebuild $0.00 $400,000.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $850,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Dozer Rebuild $0.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $450,000.00 $0.00 $900,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Dozer Undercarriage $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Dozers $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $350,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Loaders $300,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $0.00 $1,050,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Motor Graders $350,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 $450,000.00 $850,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Office Equipment/GPS
Equipment

$0.00 $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Pickups $60,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $130,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Scale Relocation (Bond
payment)

$251,950.00 $250,950.00 $249,750.00 $253,350.00 $251,550.00 $249,550.00 $1,255,150.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Scraper Rebuilds $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Scrapers $0.00 $1,100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,100,000.00

Solid
Waste

Solid
Waste

Transfer of Funds $400,000.00 $400,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $400,000.00

$3,461,950.00 $2,700,950.00 $1,414,750.00 $1,453,350.00 $1,616,550.00 $699,550.00 $7,885,150.00

3/7/2022 13:56



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Repairs on existing buildings
(machine shed, landfill shop), replacement of equipment that is stationary in buildings or onsite
at the landfill (air compressors, fencing)

Funding Source: 008-Solid Waste

Amount: $100,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 008-00-8050-000

Alternatives: Reduce the amount requested to $75,000 for repairing old buildings such as
machine shed, appliance shed.

Consequences of alternative: Some of the planned repairs and purchases will not get to be
repaired due to the lack of funding in the account which could cause more damage to structures
from the weather at the landfill (wind specifically)



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Rebuild #341 Compactor per the
Equipment Replacement Plan. These machines are to be rebuilt at 15,000 hours and 27,000
hours.  The first rebuild on this machine was back in 2016 with 14,817 hours. This machine will
be hour ready for a rebuild in 2023.

Funding Source: 008-Solid Waste

Amount: $400,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 008-8250-000

Alternatives: Purchase a brand new machine for double the money or rebuild the machine as
requested

Consequences with alternative: If a new machine was purchased the purchase price is almost
double of the rebuild price option on the machine.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2022

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Purchase of Wheel Loader
replacing Loader #358 per the Equipment Replacement Plan. Loader will be at the 10,000 hour
mark for replacement.

Funding Source: 008- Solid Waste

Amount: $350,000.00

Account Code: 008-8250-000

Alternatives: Keep equipment #358 and repair issues on the machine when they arise

Consequences of alternatives: Once a machine gets over the 10,000 hour mark you run the risk
of engine failure, emission issues, expensive repairs.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Office Equipment/GPS .
GPS upgrades to landfill equipment to be up to date with the technology changes and upgrade
computer equipment in offices

Funding Source: 008-Solid Waste

Amount: $100,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 008-8150-000

Alternatives: Wait to upgrade equipment until 2024

Consequences to alternative: Waiting to purchase updated GPS equipment or computer
equipment could slow the productivity onsite for landfill staff if the equipment is not working as
it should due to needing to be updated.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2022

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: New Scalehouse and Customer
Convenience Center Bond for 15 years payment

Funding Source: Transfer from 008 Solid Waste fund to 083 County and Bond Interest

Amount: $250,900.00

Account Code: 083 County Bond & Interest

Alternatives: Transfer money from the 013 Reserve Fund instead of the 008 Fund

Consequences with alternative: The 013 fund is normally used for Gas Collection costs as well
as having the reserve funds to cover the costs of maintaining the landfill once it closes per the
statute.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Replace #334 Scraper for a new
scraper. This machine has been rebuilt 2 times and is at the end of its life cycle and is due for
replacement on the equipment replacement plan.

Funding Source: 008-Solid Waste

Amount: $1,100,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 008-8250-000

Alternatives: Keep equipment #334 and repair the machine when breakdowns happen

Consequences to alternative: If we keep the machine we run the risk of very expensive repairs,
engine failures, etc.



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2022

Department: Solid Waste

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Transfer of funds from the tipping
fees revenue which comes from our out of county waste that is brought to the landfill to the
reserve fund 013

Funding Source: 008

Amount: 400,000.00

Account Code: 008-00-8300-005

Alternatives: Leave the $400,000 in the 008 fund instead of transferring into the 013 fund

Consequences other alternative: We would be out of compliance with statue.



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Appraiser

$25,000.00 $26,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $26,000.00 $127,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Court Services

$0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Dist. Atty

$26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Em. Mgmt

$0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $90,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Health

$20,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $30,000.00 $142,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Maintenance

$0.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO

$176,000.00 $143,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $1,007,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO-RCCF

$38,600.00 $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Yth Srvcs

$0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Citrix Licensing $52,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Firewalls $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Firewalls & Switches $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,800.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

LEC - Tyler New World $174,000.00 $182,900.00 $182,900.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $913,900.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

LEC - Tyler New World -
Hutch Reimb

-$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$670,982.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Microsoft Office $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $75,000.00 $395,000.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

San Replacement $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $100,000.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

San Replacement - SO $0.00 $60,000.00 $36,363.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,363.00

3/11/2022 14:54



Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Switch/Router $0.00 $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Tablets for Maintenance $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Thin Laptops $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,658.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Thin Workstations $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,260.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

VM Ware Servers $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $62,500.00

Special
Equipment

Info
Tech

Windows 10 IOT
Enterprise

$9,519.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $458,578.00 $495,959.00 $439,322.00 $329,500.00 $316,500.00 $354,500.00 $1,935,781.00
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

3/11/2022 14:54



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Appraiser

$25,000.00 $26,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $26,000.00 $127,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Court Services

$0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Dist. Atty

$26,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Em. Mgmt

$0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $90,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Health

$20,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $30,000.00 $142,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Maintenance

$0.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $28,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO

$176,000.00 $143,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $216,000.00 $1,007,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
SO-RCCF

$38,600.00 $33,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,000.00

Special
Equipment

Auto Vehicle Replacement -
Yth Srvcs

$0.00 $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $285,600.00 $334,000.00 $319,000.00 $297,000.00 $269,000.00 $322,000.00 $1,541,000.00

3/11/2022 14:46



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Appraiser 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Replace 2006 Chevrolet Malibu 

 

Funding Source:  Special Equipment Fund 

 

Amount:  $26,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  093-8200-116 

 

Alternatives:   
1. Look for a used vehicle. 

2. Defer purchase to a future year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



$ 
z 

0
 

g 

' % 
s' 

3 
• 

i
 

i 
• 

E 
• 

• 
• 

0
 

8 
I 

• 
0

 

: 
; 

; 
? 

9 
- 

i 
4

 
a 

2 
• 

i 
8

 
@E
°
 

3 
f
 

• 
i 

a 
if
 

• 
.t

 
± 

• 
2

 
> 

I 
a 

z 
at
 

«
 

• 
f 

: " 
£E

 
5 

9 
g 
- 

5
 

o 
5 

2 
0

 
e 

8 
z 

s 
• 

• 
! 

G
 

' 
sz

 
G

 
c 

' 
z8

 
' 

• 
3 

t 
a3

 
j 

3
 
�

 
3 

f 
#

 
a

 
##

 
• 

A'
 

± 
; 

3 
•c ± 

' 
: d

 

: 
• 

�
 

- 
il 

£ 
·i
 

3 
=s

 
i 

g
 

r 
i • • 

2.
 

a
 

• 
£ 

-£
 

5
 

3 
£%

 
g#

 
%

 
£ 

• 
sg

 
s9

 

t 
% 

• 
a 

! 
ii 

• 
g 

£ 
e 

j 
33

 
g
 

I 
: s%

 
£ 

it 
8£

 

• j 
£ .£ 

a 
I 

; 
a 

8g
 

• 8 < I «<
 

• 
: +

 
$ 5 

8 
•  • • l 

n 4 
2 8 • € 

o 
i 

ri
 

$ 
• ; 

. 
2 

t 
ti 

g 
% 

: g 
- 

8 z 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Emergency Management 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Replace a 2008 Chevrolet 2500 

command vehicle with a new outfitted vehicle.  This vehicle will be 15 years old and is used for 

response, command functions and pulling various county response trailers.  By purchasing a 

vehicle new, it will come with a warranty and serve the county for several years. 

 

The 2008 Chevrolet was purchased by grant funding and has been a good vehicle.  Since it was 

purchased with grant funding, we can either give the vehicle back or transfer that vehicle to another 

response agency.  Although the vehicle is older, with higher miles, it will still make a good 

command vehicle if transferred to one of the rural fire districts that would not drive it every day. 

 

Funding Source:  Special Equipment Fund 

 

Amount:  $40,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  093-8200-113 Vehicles 

 

Alternatives:   
1. Look for a used vehicle that will meet the required specifications. 

2. Purchase new or used vehicle and return grant funded vehicle. 

3. Keep using current vehicle 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



= 
z 

3 
8.
 - - 

' 
9g

 
�

 : 
!# 

% 
- 

" 

t 8 
i 8 
0

 • 8 : ; 
• 8 
• is

 
s 

8 
2s

 
s 

s 
• 5 i8

 : 
g 

f 
38

 
8 

; 
5

 
a 

• 0 3 e 

' 
is8 

$
 

8 
£3

 
e 

ei 
g 

8 
!
 
f 

;i 

• ! 
5 

3 i 
£ t 

3 
% 

8 
• z z a 

% 
8 

c 
$ £ - 

4
 

c 
• 

£ 
' 3 
0

 

E 
e 

• F 
• 

0
 

• I 
- 5 

F 
• 8 

g 0
 

G
 

- 
0 1! 

0» 
£ 

c 
$ 

t 
> 

c
 

s#
 

a 
e 

t
 

f
 

2
 s 

i 
0
 

• 
c 

3 
" 

8 
• 

• 
u 

0
 

8 
c
 

g I 
• 

" 
- 

2 
" 

$
 

0
 - 

0
 

t 
± 

• 
et 

9 
• 

~ 
> 

9 
l
 

c 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Health Department 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Annual Vehicle replacement.  

The Health Department fleet averaged: 

6,832 miles per month or 314 miles per workday in 2019; and 

4,326 miles per month even with the shutdown in 2020; and 

5,161 miles per month or 238 miles per workday in 2021 again with a partial shutdown. 

The department’s vehicles are an average of 10 years old. 

The increase from $20,000 to $28,000 was made at the recommendation of Kyle Berg. 

 

Funding Source:  Special Equipment Fund 

 

Amount:  $28,000.00 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  093-8200-300 Vehicles 

 

Alternatives:   
1. Look for a used vehicle. 

2. Defer purchase to a future year. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Equipment Mileage Maintenance Cost
H#30 65,060 4,091.54$ ,

H#31 70,750 3,353.58$ ,
H#32 117,472 3,810.60$ ,
H#33 49,577 909.74$ ,
H#34 108,913 3,348.86$ ,
H#35 88,848 2,277.68$ ,
H#36 71,190 1,283.46$ ,
H#37 129,796 11,446.58$ ,
H#38 156,825 5,591.14$ ,
H#39 111,267 4,428.94$ ,
H#40 89,631 1,913.14$ ,
H#42 21,003 386.03$ ,
H#43 99,387 2,587.83$ ,
H#44 31,017 41.61$ ,
Health DKOI - 2019 DKOI ,
Health Trailer - Doolittle ,

The health department is currently running 5 vehicles that were transferred from other departments. Due to the high mileage on several
vehicles, age and inability of replacing some vehicles in past budget years I would like to see them start replacing some vehicles as the budget allows.
With some of the older vehicles we are running into the inability of getting some replacement parts as they have been discontinued and aftermarket
parts are not available.

Fuel cost on 37,38,39,40 and 42 include costs from prior departmental use.

Kyle Berg

Equipment Listing Innovative Maintenance Systems
\Reno County Automotive\Health Dept.  (16)

Year, Make, Model Fuel Cost 2015 - Present
2005 Chevy Malibu 1,221.01$

2007 Chevy Uplander 1,746.51$
2008 Ford Fusion 3,329.29$
2012 Ford F-150 3,216.39$
2010 Toyota Rav 2,829.63$
2013 Chevy Malibu 2,819.09$
2015 Chevy Equinox 4,347.62$
2006 Jeep Commander 3,879.98$
2009 Lincoln MKX 4,847.45$
2015 Ford Interceptor SUV 10,494.44$
2006 Chevy Malibu 1,369.77$
2018 Toyota Rav 1,702.18$
2008 Dodge Charger 2,241.71$
2020 Chevrolet Equinox 638.65$
2019 DKOI

3/9/2022 9:10:16 AM Printed by kyle.berg Page 1 of 1

Doolittle

Total equipment listed = 16



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Maintenance & Purchasing 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Purchase another vehicle to 

replace the 2005 GMC pickup which has 135,000 hard miles. 

 

Funding Source:  Special Equipment Fund 

 

Amount:  $28,000 

 

Full G/L Account Code:  093-8200-111 

 

Alternatives:   
1. Look for a used vehicle. 

2. Defer purchase to a future year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



• i • i 
i { • l 

i g 



ounty Automotive 
Maintenance Dept 

Type Vehicle 
0petato 
Serial 2gt 131851341234 

woo_ea.mi 
lssued: 2/17/2022 MNT#4• 2005 GMC Si/verado 
Completed: 2/17/2022 92315 AM 
Mileage 135.096 
Vendor; 
Assigned To 
Notes. 

Repair Maintenance 

[ Check over for estimate 
Lfeehicia Descriptiou 

Shop fen¢ Check over forest.ate 
tors Ate 

1$ $2400 

Needs rear brake shoes and drurns needs shocks needs ear main seal has%leak at /rt of transmission, could need trans.m 
ission repair needs power steering pump due toleak ha mas$air Al sensor bole has lean co&es both banks found bad 
power booster grommet Has broken dip.shick tube Ruing boards are close to rusting off froan mounts on cab performed$ 
mole test on engine to check for vacuum leak but was inconclusive due to broken dip.stick tube 

Total 

Tec/m/cl,n Noles,· _ 

$36.00 

Used Unit Cost Cost 
f $5.75 $5.75 

$5.75 

pM $0.00 
Repairs $36.00 
Parts $5.75 
Labor $36.00 
Custom $0.00 
Taxes S000 

TOTAL: $41.75 

+ End Work Order # 
5912 

32202233336PM 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Sheriff’s Office (Patrol, Detectives & Admin) 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Replace one (1) new patrol truck at 

a trade in cost difference of approximately $18,000.00. Replace three (3) new patrol Hybrid 

SUV’s at an approximate cost of $32,000.00 each ($96,000.00 total).  Replace two (2) used 

detective/admin vehicles at a trade in cost difference of approximately $14,500.00 each 

($29,000.00 total).  Funds needed for the purchase of the equipment and installation of the 

equipment inside these vehicles by the County Automotive Shop is approximately $36,000.00. 

We have already reduced the number of Hybrid SUV’s purchased yearly from four (4) down to 

three (3) and moved the rotation out to 5 years instead of every 4 years. 

 

Funding Source:  General Fund (001) & Special Equipment Fund (093) 

 

Amount:  Total cost for purchase of six (6) vehicles, equipment and installation - $179,000.00 

 

Account Code:  093-8200-106 Vehicles Sheriff   $143,000.00 CIP Amount 

Account Code:  001-06-7150-002 Vehicle Equipping  $28,000.00 

Account Code:  001-06-6300-001 Auto Repairs (Install)  $8,000.00 

   $179,000.00 

 

Alternatives:  Defer the purchase(s). 
 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
- 

8 
8 

g
 

GA
 
(
 

G
 

G
 
(
 
(
 
8 

(
 
8 

8 
8 

8 
m

 
g
t
 

£ 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
• 

8 
3 

' ! 
' ' 

' ' 
' ' 

' ' 
t 
' ' 

' ' 
i 
I 

5 
3 

• 
C

 
e
 

0
 

2 
0

 
0

 
c
 

• 
• 

• 
4

 
• 

6
 
" 

c
 
- (

 
6

. 
" 

- 
• 

f 
' 

f 
- ' 

• 
t 

+ 
2 

d
 

• 
• 

• 
i 

$ 
" % 

• 

' 
, 

4
 

i 
+ ' 

f • 
er

 
" 

" 
8 

8 
8 

8 
8 

8 
" 

" 
" 

• 
" 

8 
8 

$
 

0
 

€
 

e
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

c 
" 

I 
a

 
0

 
" 

de
 

b
 

6
 

• 
• 

• 
" 

• 
0
 
• 

• 
G

 
d

 i • ' • ' 
% 
i • 

• • 
8 

£ 
8 

b
 

% 
e
 

0
 

8 
- F 

�
 

• 
• 

% 
e 0

 
0
 

8 
• " 

- • 
;, 

• 
8 

$ 
• 

e
 

£ 
• 

• 
8 

t 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

cg
 

" 
5

 8 
• 

G
 
(
 
(
 
(
 

8 
8 

8 
8 

8 
G

 
• 

G
 
(
 
(
 

c
 

• 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
• 

• I 
' ! 

' ' 
' ' 

' ' 
' ! 

' ' 
' ' 

' • 
• 

6
 

8 
£ 

e
 

0
 

0
 

• 
g

 
• 

6
. 
• 

- e
 

6
 
• 

- 
• 5 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

d
 
• 

• 
q

 
• 

• 
• 

- 
• 

6
 
: -

 i • 
�

 
4

 
.• 

" 
% 

t 
e 

• 
• 

• 
8 3

 8
 

• 
ll 

• 
8 

• 
- 3 

8 
• 

• 
" 

£ 
G

J 
• 

6
 

• 
' 0%

 
• 

• 

' 
e 

• 
b

 
6

 
£ 

• 
• 

• 
£ 
' • 

db
 

eg
 

• 
e
 

• 
0

 
- 

0%
 
• 

, 
a 

<
 

¢
 

• 
$ 

• + 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
' 

0
 

£ 
' 

• 
z G

 
• 

5 "
 5 

• 
i • 

• 
e 

! 
" c

 £ 
• 

8 
• 

- 
• 

c»
 

F 
$ 

8 
8 

%
 

" • 
6

 
8 

• 
• 

- ( 
• 

G
 
• 

0%
 

3 
• 

0
 
0

 
• 

0
 
" 

8 
• 

• 
• 

• 
8 

- • 
• 

6
 
- •

 - 
• 

• 
• 

- •
 

• 
0%

 
- 

• d • ± • + 
�

 
• e 

d
 

• 
• 

• 
• 

5 
i 

i 



sa
g

 
••
•
 

7i
i
i
 

A
l 

gz
!
!
 

fl/i
 

zg
g
g

 

88
8

8
 

I
! 

!!
!
 

G
 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Sheriff’s Office (Jail Division) 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  Replace an older model jail 

transport vehicle with one (1) new jail Hybrid SUV transport vehicle and equipment at a cost of 

approximately $40,600.00 which also includes installation of equipment by the County 

Automotive Shop. 

 

Funding Source:  General Fund (001) & Special Equipment Fund (093) 

 

Amount:  Total amount $40,600.00 

 

Account Code:  093-8200-114 Vehicles Jail   $33,000.00 CIP Amount 

Account Code:  001-06-7150-002 Vehicle Equipping  $6,000.00 

Account Code:  001-06-6300-001 Auto Repairs (Install)  $1,600.00 

   $40,600.00 

 

Alternatives:  Defer purchase until 2024. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



- e cu 
• de 

J 3 ! i 
• % 

- 
• 

• 
• 

' 
; 

3 
• 

! 
a

 
2 

• 
i 

- - 
• • > • 

d
 

• • 
r • l 
1 • R 
'I 

• > z 
c
 

£ l 
• • 

2 
4

 

i • 
• 

2 
• 

£ z 
2 

u
 • 

• • 
• 

3 
«o 

a 
5 

• 
$ 

• - 
5 

• - - - 
4

 
e 

£
 

e 

! 8 
�

 

l 
8 

8 
> 

2 
8 

8 
i 

9 

� v 
e

 
y
 

g 
• • - - 

£ 
0
 

] % 
f 

• 
±° • ; 

! 
a

 
• 

e 
• 

il 5 
• • 
5 

a
 

t
 

>
 

d
 - - 

8 e 
• 

• • 
j 

I z 
t
 

B
 

�
 

l £ 
¢

 
e 

• 
g ! 

E 5 
' 3 

0
 

l 
2 

- • 
! 

0
 

> 

&
 

• • ' 
t 

" 
£

 z 
.i 

f
 

9 
• 

f 
3 I 
3 

a 
% 

d
 £ 

& I 
; 

+ 
o
 

8 
e 

e
 

• 
0

 
I. 

- 
0

 
C

 " 
, 

• 
> 

•
 

" 
c
 

u
 

«t 
u 

y 
q
 

• 
e 

c 
2

 
t 

s - 
d
 

c 

t " 
0

 

c 
, 

8 
%

 
e 

8 
+ • 

• 
0¥ 

£
 

1 
2 

• 
4

 

t 
> t 

� 
£ 

8 
• 

• 
> 

£ 
• 

e 
• 



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Youth Services – Shelter  

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year:  The 8 or 12-passenger van that 

will be replaced will be thirteen (13) years old in 2023.  Due to 13 years of transporting 

teenagers, its wear and tear will merit replacement.   

 

Funding Source:  Special Equipment Fund 

 

Amount:  Estimated Amount $36,000.00 

 

Account Code:  093-8200-900  

 

Alternatives:  

1. Look for a used vehicle. 

2. Defer purchase to a future year. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



§ 
3 

8 
, 

t
 

% 
mn

 
i 2

 
9 

G
 

4
 

• 
• 

c 

" 
3 

e 
• 

• 
6

 
• 

0 
• 

± 
' 

3 
e

 
3 

• 
• 

• 
8 

c 
4

 
0 

• 
.. 

• 
• 

d
 

! 
• 

• 
• 

• 
$ 

• 
3 

i • 
- 

0
 

• 
• 

f
 

2 
G 

2 
r 

> 
g 

3 
• 

8 
5 

•• 
• 

8 
• 

3 
3 

• 
• 

$ 
« 

3 
• 

4
 

• 
• 

E
 

- 
a 

4
 

8 
" 

• 
S

 
5 

d
 

8 
0

 
(
 

• f 
e

 
• 

• 
< 

3 
£ 

% 
• f I 

<
 

8 
- 

s 
t 

f 3 s £ 
% 

f 
i 8 

i 
a 

€
 

9
 

• 
• 

• 
8 

• 
g 

2 
3 

• 
2 

• 
3 

% 

£ 
• 

• 
• 

• 
$ 

• 
ft 

« • z 
• • 

• 
• 

5 • 2 i 
i, 

£ • l 5
 • e - 

< 
c
 

• 
• 

• 
2 • • • £ 

f 
• 

i 
4 

< • 
g
 

8 



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Citrix Licensing $52,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Firewalls $15,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Firewalls & Switches $5,600.00 $5,600.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,800.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

LEC - Tyler New World $174,000.00 $182,900.00 $182,900.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $182,700.00 $913,900.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

LEC - Tyler New World -
Hutch Reimb

-$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$130,288.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$136,802.00 -$670,982.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Microsoft Office $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $80,000.00 $75,000.00 $395,000.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

San Replacement $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $100,000.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

San Replacement - SO $0.00 $60,000.00 $36,363.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,363.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Switch/Router $0.00 $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Tablets for Maintenance $12,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Thin Laptops $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $19,329.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $38,658.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Thin Workstations $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $32,130.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $64,260.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

VM Ware Servers $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $62,500.00

Special
Equipme

Info
Tech

Windows 10 IOT Enterprise $9,519.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $172,978.00 $161,959.00 $120,322.00 $32,500.00 $47,500.00 $32,500.00 $394,781.00
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

3/7/2022 14:00



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Firewalls & Switches
This is a continuing project to replace all of our older switches with new faster and Power over
ethernet devices/

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $5,600.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-00-8150-006

Alternatives: Continue with current older switch’s



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: New World LEC software
maintenance

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $182,900.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-4600-041

Alternatives:



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Reimbursement of city portion of
New World LEC software maintenance

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: -$130,288.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-4600-041

Alternatives:



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Microsoft Office 365 annual
support.

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $80,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives: Find an different product that would be compatible with our other
applications



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: San Replacement. This is to build
up $80,000.00 over 4 years to replace our network storage device

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $20,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives: Continue with older equipment and risk failure



 

 

CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023 

 
 

Department:  Sheriff’s Office 

 

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: This cost is for a “shelf” for the 

counties Cybernetics SANs. It connects in parallel to the Cybernetics SANs to expand storage 

capacity options. This purchase is for the shelf itself and to fill one array of the shelf with the 

capacity required to replace the video NAS. Current storage capacity for patrol videos are not 

suffice with today’s technology and video retention guidelines. Original estimated quote by the 

Counties I.T. department is between $30,000.00 and $60,000.00 for the needed upgrade.   

 

Funding Source:  General Fund Special Equipment 

 

Amount:  $60,000.00 

 

Account Code:  06-8150-006 093-8150-006 

 

Alternatives:  Fund the amount of $30,000.00, which is the lower end of I.T.’s estimated 

quote. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Switch/Router
Replace the Core Router that connects the entire network together.

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $18,000.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives: The current device is about 10 years old. Continue with older
equipment and risk failure



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Thin Laptops.
Continue replacement of old laptop to thin laptops as we are moving to the citrix environment

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $19,329.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives: Continue with current older laptops



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Thin desktop clients.
Continue replacement of desktops to thin client desktops as we are moving to the citrix
environment

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $32,130.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives: Continue with current older Computers



CAPITAL REQUEST FOR 2023

Department: Information Technology

Description & Justification for this item and this budget year: Update VMWare servers
Building up a fund of $50,000 over 4 years for this project.

Funding Source: Special Equipment

Amount: $12,500.00

Full G/L Account Code: 093-8150-006

Alternatives:



Reno County CIP 2023-2027 by Program/Department 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Program Dept Equipment/Project 2022 Adopted 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 Sum 2023-2027

Youth Services Detention Security Camera System $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Youth Services Food Kitchen Steam Kettles $13,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Youth Services Shelter Shelter Furniture
Replacements

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

Youth Services Shelter Shelter Window
Replacements

$0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,000.00

Total for Capital Improvement Items Only: $33,200.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,000.00
*Commodity, Contractual or Revenue Item

3/7/2022 14:15













AGENDA ITEM
 AGENDA

ITEM #9.B

AGENDA DATE: April 26, 2022

PRESENTED BY: Randy Partington, County Administrator

 

 

 
AGENDA TOPIC:
Monthly Department Reports

SUMMARY & BACKGROUND OF TOPIC:
Every month, departments have been asked to provide an update on the previous month's major
activities.  The reports are intended to keep the county commission informed about the appointed and
elected departments.  Attached are reports for Health Dept., Human Resources, Information
Technology, Maintenance, Public Works, Solid Waste, Treasurer and Youth Services.

ALL OPTIONS:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION / REQUEST:
Discussion Only

POLICY / FISCAL IMPACT:
n/a









RENO COUNTY
206 West First Ave.

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245
PHONE: (620) 694-2982

FAX: (620) 694-2508

Board of Commissioners - Department Update
Human Resources – March 2022

Helen Foster – Human Resources Director

Employment Activity
We currently have 19 job openings. For the month of March, we have had four (4) separations and gained Six (6)
new employees. Submitted applications received for open positions was 42 applications completed through
February 27th.  The average daily views for the month of March were 327. This is an increase for applications and
traffic.

New Carriers
At this time, members are still having some disruption with accumulators for deductibles. BML did audit the
deductibles and has identified 107 individuals that will need to be contacted for overpayments/underpayments and
incorrect payments towards their deductible.

The Fair Market Health benefit is growing in popularity.  The employees that have utilized the services through Fair
Market Health have had positive experiences and appreciate this benefit to them.  At this time we have had 50
procedures/services purchased on the Fair Market Health. Fair Market Health representatives have been great to
work with us and BML. They have now fully integrated with our health plan so that deductible information is shared
once a week through a file feed.

On the administration side, we are still working through issues with the COBRA billing for dental and the claims
detail.  Our account representative is working with their team to get these problems resolved. It was hopeful that
this would be resolved for March billings, but has not been yet.

End of the Year
I have submitted the 1095 transmittal file to the IRS and received confirmation that the filed was transmitted and
accepted by the IRS on March 9th, 2022.

Unemployment Fraud
We have received two new unemployment claims that were fraudulent this month.  That brings our total for 2022 to
9 fraudulent claims. All the claims that have been fraud are employees that were impacted last year by the
multitude of fraudulent claims.

Digitalizing Records
Cory with Information Services has been working with our office to coordinate a plan to format all forms utilized by
in our office to a fillable format. We have discussed with IT about the move to digital personnel records and will
coordinate a plan moving forward to get this accomplished.  Our first step is to get all forms used in this office in
fillable format so that we do not create any new paper documents.  Once we have achieved that, IT and our office
will begin the process of scanning paper records.

Job Descriptions and Policies for Compensation
Phil Hayes and I are still currently working through the processes for the new evaluation and pay system to
complete a policy that will regulate the compensation structure moving forward.  We are nearing completion on the
policy. I anticipate bringng this policy before the Board in May. Phil will be working with me during the first part of
April to deliver the database for pay for performance. We will also be working towards completion of the new job
descriptions.  Once we have this project completed, we will be implementing the new job descriptions and
conducting training on the evaluation systems with all supervisors and department heads.



 
 

 

 

 

 

April 4, 2022 

 
           Monthly Report Information Services 

           Michael Mathews 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We are currently full staffed.  

Budget YTD summary 

IT always has a lot of large expenditures at the first of the year as we must pay many of our software support contracts. 

These contracts come due through the month of April then our expenses tend to go down. We work diligently to remain 

within our adopted budget. We are currently at 54% of our budget but our spending will decrease quite a lot now. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We have completed the Multi factor authentication project with little trouble. We are now working on a number of 

other projects; we are still working on the time keeping project with the Clerk’s office and the Health department. We 

are also reconfiguring our entire domain this project will take several months to complete. The document management 

project is going well. During the month of March, we were able to scan and index 94 deeds books which is 23% of the 

total of their project. We have also started working with HR to find the correct process for scanning their old employee 

records as well as using Panda Doc to send documents to be signed electronically and then move directly into the 

document management system. I have also been meeting with department heads to determine what they feel is their 

biggest need from IT, so far most would like more training. I have been trying to find the best way to provide more 

training. 

Issues that we dealt with the past month include. We had a few challenges this month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENO COUNTY 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2523 

Fax: 620-694-2954 



    

  

 

Maintenance & Purchasing  

Monthly Report  4/1/2022 

Harlen Depew, Director 

Staffing:  Maintenance has two unfilled Custodial Tech positions.  We’re working on a position 

description for a budgeted position that would be focused in-part, on monitoring and 

coordinating work by outside contractors, in addition to other Maintenance related duties.     

Budget YTD summary 

The department has spent 23% of our operating budget at the end of the first quarter. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Space Study: We continue to work with Departments and the County Administrator in the 

development of the courthouse space study and resulting project to address those needs.  The 

architect’s proposal was delayed a couple of weeks while we negotiated additional 3-D 

drawings so we all have an accurate picture of what we will be getting with this project. 

Courthouse Earthquake Repairs:  The second structural engineer hired by the insurance 

company completed her on-site visit on March 31st.  We hope to have a determination of 

coverage on the dome change order soon. 

The work to re-anchor the limestone façade around the tower portion of the building is also 

part of the additional work being considered by the insurance company. 

 

 



Don Brittain
Public Works DirectorRoad & Bridge  Planning & Zoning  Noxious Weed  Utilities

M a r c h 2022 Monthly Report

Equipment

Sign truck is the only vehicle not purchased yet per the 2022 equipment plan.

Projects

Asphalt Crew is now crack sealing and will start asphalt overlaying in April

Mowing/Sign is trimming trees throughout the County and repairing signs as needed and will start mowing
ROW in April

Dirt Crew will start replacing culverts under roadways scheduled for the 2022 overlay season and cleaning
ditches throughout the County.

Bridge Crew is building the Nickerson Blvd. bridge 20.65, 1.5 miles north of K-96.

Planning & Zoning Working on one rezone, one special exception, and a flood plain issue regarding state
data. Planning Commission is working on priorities for upcoming year.

Contracted Projects

Willowbrook Bridge construction will begin this summer.
Construction on the Arlington Rd. bridge within the Arlington city limits is going well.
Construction on the Arlington Rd. bridge eight miles east of the City of Arlington is going well.

Challenges

Working on grants for rehabilitating Sewer District 201 Yoder and Sewer District 202 Habit.
Working on Water District 101 Yoder high nitrate problem.
Short four full time positions but I may not replace one position.
Need to consider and start the process of transitioning the ownership and maintenance of Water and Sewer
Districts 8 to the city of The Highlands.

Public Works
600 Scott Boulevard

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505
620-694-2976

Don Brittain, Director



Reno County Solid Waste
703 S. Mohawk
Hutchinson, KS 67501
(620) 694-2586
Fax (620) 694-669-8126

Solid Waste Monthly Update March 2022
Megan Davidson, Director

Staffing: We currently have 1 open position of a General Laborer.

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: The month of March has been busy
settling into the new facilities. We have implemented a new High Wind Policy due
to the excessive winds we had back in December as well as going higher in the air
with the trash. This policy can be adjusted if we are maintaining the trash blowing
outside the facility and it is excessively windy. We will continue to work with the
public on educating them as to when we could close and the reasons for why we
would have to close.

Staff has kept busy picking up trash around the facility on and off site. We
currently have 8 temporary employees on site helping clean the trash that has
blown offsite around the landfill facilities.

We are in full swing with moving our compost to the slopes to help with erosion
control for the rainy spring season. Dirt work on the gun range will begin soon!

Budget We are preparing our 2023 budget currently. Supply and demand of
materials and equipment still seems to be a major issue that will carry into 2023 it
looks like. 008 Fund- 6% spent



www.renogov.org

March 17, 2022

MONTHLY REPORT

STAFFING CHANGES OR ISSUES:

We have been holding interviews and have had some we think would be a nice addition to our
team.  We will continue to interview until we fill the three (3) open positions we have and then
promote from within to fill the position in the treasury side.

BUDGET YTD SUMMARY:

As of this day, we are running around 14% of our budget with most of it coming from payroll
and postage.  The YTD budget left is $232,884.87 with $39,051.13 being spent YTD.
I have found that all supplies have gone up significantly.  I was in the process of ordering paper
which was approximately $34/case and before the order was even completed, the price jumped to
$37/case.  I am looking at all suppliers to make sure their product is something we can use, it has
a warranty and is cheaper. My office will be reviewing ways to use supplies wisely.

PROJECTS/ISSUES/CHALLENGES/CONCERNS:

My department’s major projects for the month of April will be finishing the budget, completing
the MV budget estimates and processing AAE’s. We are still having a lot of commercial
customers coming in to change or renew their fleets. We only have March 2022 forms 138 to do
for the school district to help in their preparation of their budgets.

RENO COUNTY TREASURER
125 West First Ave.

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245
620-694-2938

Fax: 620-694-2776
T

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777



__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Youth Services Monthly Report

March 2022

Staffing changes or issues (if any)

We’re currently seeking to fill the stand-by Youth Care Specialist/Juvenile Detention Officer, a 40-
hour male only Youth Care Specialist, a 40-hour male only Juvenile Detention Officer and a 20-hour
Youth Care Specialist. All positions, except standby positions, offers insurance benefits and KPERS.
Those interested in the open positions can apply online at Renogov.org.

The employee of the month for March is Halee Bonebright. Halee started working for Youth Services
in September of 2013, she worked for us till 2018.  She then transferred to another county position for
3 years.  Halee transferred back to Youth Services in February 2021.  Halee is our Administrative
Associate III. In the temporary absence of her supervisor, Halee accepted several extra duties.  She
quickly learned the extra duties and completed them efficiently and accurate all the while completing
all her regular daily duties.  Halee continued to assist other staff with minor projects, always making
time to assist them with their request. She greets her co-workers and the public politely and
professionally, both in person and on the phone.  Halee takes great pride in her work and strives to
do her best daily. Congratulations Halee!

Budget YTD Summary

As of 3/31/2022, we have spent 17% of our Shelter budget (Dept.90).  The expenses are routine and
are mostly due to salaries. The total shelter budget is $1,151,760.  We have spent 18% of our
detention budget (Dept.91).  Detention expenditures consists of mostly salaries. The total detention
budget is $1,036,265.

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns

The 2023 budget has been the main focus for this month.  The difficulty of predicting continued
increases in utilities, food and fuel makes this year’s budgeting an unsettling process. We currently
have a CIP item scheduled to be purchased this year which currently cost $2000 more than what was
budgeted. Last year at this time, this same item was researched, and the amount budgeted was
appropriate. A challenging process.

We have made some progress in hiring staff.  This has led to more staff working their regular
scheduled hours. We’re in need of two full time male positions to be filled, which we have had
limited applicants.

RENO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES
219 West Second Ave.

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501
(620) 694-2500

Fax:  (620) 694-2504
TDD:  Kansas Relay Center  1-800-766-3777

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER

JUVENILE INTAKE & ASSESSMENT

BOB JOHNSON YOUTH SHELTER


	~04-26-2022 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	03.A Proclamation-NatlCrimeVictimsWeek.pdf (p.3-4)
	06.B ProclamationLocalDisaster.pdf (p.5-6)
	06.C Minutes.pdf (p.7-28)
	06.D RFQ-Range.pdf (p.29-36)
	06.E GLMVProposal-AddtlDome.pdf (p.37-39)
	06.F Resolution PZ Case 2022-02.pdf (p.40-43)
	07.A ArtsHumanities2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.44-45)
	07.B SpecialParkRecFunds2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.46-47)
	07.C EMS2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.48-53)
	07.D Horizons2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.54-61)
	07.E Museum2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.62-70)
	07.F StartUpHutch2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.71-74)
	07.G TECH2023BudgetRequest.pdf (p.75-80)
	08.A USI Presentation.pdf (p.81-90)
	08.B CompensationPolicy.pdf (p.91-97)
	08.C CourthouseSpaceRenoArchProposal.pdf (p.98-109)
	08.D CommunicationsUpdate.pdf (p.110-114)
	09.A CIP Presentation.pdf (p.115-197)
	Reno-101-2022 - BOCC CIP BOOK 2022.04.08.pdf
	Reno-101-2022 - Resolution 2018-14  establishing Capital Improvement Fund.pdf

	09.B DeptReports.pdf (p.198-208)

